
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

December 16, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

 
COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration of the December 2, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Emmons County Emergency Management Service JPA. 

 

6. County States Attorney Lawyer: 

a. Victim/Witness grant funding. 
b. Continuation of discussion regarding County Auditor/Treasurer. 

 
7. John Fraase: 

a. Courtroom name discussion.  

8. County Finance director Jacobs: 

a. 2023 Investment Report; Q2 2024 & Q3 2024 Investment Returns. 
 

9. County Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski: 

a. Investment clarification. 
b. 2024 General Election Recap. 

 

10. Chairman Bitner: 

a. Continuation of Co2 pipeline discussion. 
b. Standalone election computer discussion. 

 
11. Consideration of Auxiliary Board applications. 

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


12. County Engineer Hall: 

a. Developer Waiver Request.  
b. 236th ST SE Bridge discussion.  

 
13. Other business. 

14. Adjourn.  

 
The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on January 6, 2025.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

DECEMBER 2ND, 2024 

 

5:00 PM Invocation by Chaplain and Pledge of Allegiance 

     Administration of Oath of Office for newly elected Commissioners and other elected officials 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Chairman Bitner were present. 

Like last meeting’s (Nov. 18th, 2024), several revisions were once again made to the agenda. Firstly, item 7A on the agenda 
regarding clarification on the First Quarter 2024 investment report by County Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski was quickly struck 
out by Chairman Bitner. Secondly, the discussion on the CO2 pipeline was moved up to be had after the approval of the consent 
agenda. Thirdly, an item regarding an investigation report was added to item 13 (formal grievance discussion by Comm. 
Munson). Lastly, an item regarding human services appointments by the request of Comm. Bakken was added under “other 
business”. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the meeting agenda as amended. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the November 18th, 2024 meeting minutes and bills with a slight 
amendment in the November 18th minutes regarding some word changes. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on file and available for 
inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Sprynczynatyk, 
Michael & Richard 

2023 S20' of E75' of Lot 11 & E75' of Lots 
12-13 

Error in property 
description 

$129,200  $109,000  

Sprynczynatyk, 
Michael & Richard 

2024 S20' of E75' of Lot 11 & E75' of Lots 
12-13 

Error in property 
description 

$129,200  $109,000  

Old Dominion 
Freight Line Inc 

2022 Lot 26, Block 1, Northern Plains 
Commerce Centre 2nd Addn 

Error in property 
description 

$4,130,000  $3,221,400  

Old Dominion 
Freight Line Inc 

2023 Lot 26, Block 1, Northern Plains 
Commerce Centre 2nd Addn 

Error in property 
description 

$4,501,700  $3,511,300  

Old Dominion 
Freight Line Inc 

2024 Lot 26, Block 1, Northern Plains 
Commerce Centre 2nd Addn 

Error in property 
description 

$4,740,900  $3,700,000  

Douglas & Karen 
Sokolofsky 

2024 Lot 12, Block 1, North Hills 13th 50% Homestead 
Credit 

$445,500  $345,500  

Ronald & Laurie 
Jensen 

2023 Lots 1-2 less N 59'(or S 55.08' of 
Lots 1-2), Block 6, Riverview 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$214,000  $114,000  

Carma Branch and 
Leslie Edison 

2024 Lot 9, Block 11, Highland Acres 100% Homestead 
Credit 

$265,100  $65,100  

Dana Clairmont c/o 
Dana Breiner 

2023 Lot 4, Block 21, Morningside 
Heights 

100% Disabled 
Persons Credit 

$113,400  $13,400  

Thomas & Twylla 
Rausch 

2024 Block 85, McKenzie & Coffin's, 
W30' of S15' of Lot 7, W30' of Lots 
8-12, E10' of alley adj on W; E15' of 
Lot 42 all lots 43-44 & W10' alley 
adj Lot 44 

100% Homestead 
Credit 

$358,100  $158,100  

Susan Lemke 2023 Lot 20, Block 2, Eastside Heights 100% Homestead 
Credit 

$260,700  $60,700  

Susan Lemke 2024 Lot 20, Block 2, Eastside Heights 100% Homestead 
Credit 

$272,200  $72,200  

Dennis & Paula 
Duffield 

2023 Lot 13, Block 3, Cottonwood Lake 
4th & undivided interest in Lot 32, 
Block 1 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$434,800  $334,800  

 
Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Michael & Richard Sprynczynatyk (2), Old Dominion Freight 
Line Inc (3), Douglas & Karen Sokolofsky, Ronald & Laurie Jensen, Carma Branch and Leslie Edison, Dana Clairmont c/o Dana 
Breiner, Thomas & Twylla Rausch, Susan Lemke (2), and Dennis & Paula Duffield abatements plus the remainder of the consent 
agenda in its entirety. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

The Commission decided via consensus to hold a special meeting/executive session at 10am on Wednesday, December 4th to 
discuss potential litigation and appeal of Summit Carbon Solutions’ CO2 permit. Chairman Bitner then once again opened the 
floor for public comment on the CO2 pipeline situation. More general negative opinions about Summit and its pipeline were 
shared by Jeff Jennings, Curtis Jundt, Gary Anderson, and Kevin Chevey. 



 

County Finance Director Jacobs gave a continuation of the Q1 2024 Investment Report discussion from last meeting (November 
18th, 2024), this time specifically focusing on a check dated March 28, 2024. He clarified that the reason this check didn’t deposit 
into the county’s Wells Fargo account as soon as possible was not the fault of BNC National Bank (or any bank or institution for 
that matter), but because it was sitting on a desk somewhere in the county offices and was forgotten about. Jacobs then gave 
some details about the Burleigh County investment committee following a question asked by Comm. Munson about said 
committee, namely about frequency of meetings and general operating processes. 

County Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski asked for a clarification on the 2025 final budget – the county doesn’t collect any 
reserves for the Water Resource District, and that to buy them down the county would need to use $66,038 in general fund 
dollars or force the Water Resource District to use their own reserves for that amount to do so. After some deliberation, a 
consensus was reached among the commissioners to collect the same dollar amount for the Water Resource District as last year 
but not give them any general funds. No further action was taken. Splonskowski then presented to the Commission an amended 
2025 meeting calendar, which replaced the Wednesday, January 22nd, 2025 meeting with a Tuesday, January 21st, 2025 
meeting due to a conflict in scheduling. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the amended 2025 
meeting calendar. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Engineer Hall presented a concurrence letter from the NDDOT about the Highway 10 mill project, which requested that 
Burleigh County concur with the estimated cost-sharing amount for the project; Hall then presented to the Commission a 
proposed resolution for approval. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve Hall’s proposed resolution. All 
members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall subsequently requested Commission approval for the Highway Department 
to look for consultant engineering firms willing to assist in the Highway 10 project. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. 
Bakken to approve Hall’s request for consultant engineering. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall lastly asked 
for approval from the Commission to authorize the Highway Department to advertise for annual bids. Motion by Comm. 
Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to authorize the advertisement of bids by the Highway Department. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Kim Ripple from Bismarck-Mandan MPO and MPO consultant Jason Carby from HDR presented to the Commission the Arrive 
2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan, which aims to improve the local transportation network through expansion or 
maintenance, and requested the Commission approve the Arrive 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan through a resolution of 
receipt. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the Arrive 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan with 
amended wording error. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Planner Flanagan presented a Wiese Subdivision plat in Gibbs township to the Commission and requested approval by 
the Commission. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Wiese Subdivision plat. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Flanagan then showed a conceptual letter of support by Burleigh County for the Big Sky North 
Coast passenger rail project for Commission review. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to send a letter of 
support for the project with amended spelling error. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

County HR Director Binder asked for Commission approval of the same list of holidays from 2024 in the new 2025 Holiday 
Policy. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the 2025 Holiday Policy. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. 

Chairman Bitner recused himself from the next item, relinquishing chairmanship over to Comm. Bakken. Sheriff Leben gave a 
brief update on the Burleigh East renovation project, stating that any remaining ARPA funds need to be committed prior to the 
year’s end in order to be used in the project. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to authorize remaining ARPA 
funds to the Burleigh East renovation project. All members (excluding Bitner) present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Chairmanship 
was then returned to Comm. Bitner. 

Comm. Munson presented to the Commission a formal grievance request by Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski regarding the 
process of selecting interview panels. While Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski did not have enough copies of a letter he attached 
with the grievance report form, he offered to read it to the Commission, but was quickly shut down by Comm. Munson because 
he preferred to have all the documents in person. A consensus among the commissioners was had to move this item to the next 
Commission meeting. No further action was taken. 

Julie Lawyer from the State’s Attorney’s Office (SAO) came up and presented the findings of an internal investigation within the 
Auditor/Treasurer’s office. The investigation originally stemmed from a complaint made on October 5th, 2024, about text 
messages sent by Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski being a potential policy violation of the federal Hatch Act. Allegations of a 
potential hostile workplace environment in the Auditor/Treasurer’s office were also lumped into and examined during the 
investigation following Elections Coordinator Lisa Hart’s resignation on October 15th, 2024, and subsequent phone call with 
County HR Director Binder on October 17th, 2024, but these were soon proved to be unfounded and subsequently dismissed. In 
short, 66 text messages were sent by Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski during work hours to various individuals, telling them and 
anyone they know to not vote for Brian Bitner for County Commissioner during the 2024 general election. When provided with an 
open records request from the SAO, some but not all the desired material were provided by Splonskowski. Splonskowski 
indicated to the SAO that he did not believe that his personal opinions sent on his personal phone met the criteria of an open 
record (despite him sending them as the county auditor), and that he didn’t believe that as an elected official that the Hatch Act 
applied to him. The SAO determined that the Hatch Act does in fact apply to elected officials, and that Splonskowski was found 
having violated the Hatch Act, as he used his position to try and influence an election result via the text messages. Although 
Splonskowski cannot be terminated from his position as he is an elected official and there is very little the county can effectively 
do in terms of discipline, Julie recommended that Splonskowski attend Secretary of State elections training for Hatch Act 
compliance, as well as remedial training regarding open records/meetings. Chairman Bitner recused himself from the discussion 
and again relinquished chairmanship over to Comm. Bakken. As the commissioners talked about how to ensure/verify 
Splonskowski completes the recommended training from the SAO, the conversation brazenly evolved into an open discussion on 



 

how to potentially oust the current Auditor/Treasurer from office, or eliminate the Auditor/Treasurer as an elected office altogether 
and convert the position into a Commission-appointed one. Ultimately, motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to 
table the item for next commission meeting. All members (excluding Bitner) present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Chairmanship 
was then returned to Comm. Bitner. 

Comm. Bakken gave the floor to Burleigh County Human Service Zone Director Chelsey Flory, who informed the Commission 
that three positions on the human services board are expiring. Flory requested the Commission approve the reappointment of 
Senator Dick Devers and Trevor Vennett to the board and to open Leslie Piercy’s position up for applications, as she is not 
seeking reappointment. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the reappointment of Senator Dick Devers 
and Trevor Vennett, open Piercy’s position up for applications, and for Comm. Bakken to retain the portfolio of the human 
services board until portfolios change (if at all). Comm. Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Bitner voted “AYE”; Comm. Woodcox 
abstained. Motion carried. 

 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman  
 
 
 

 
  
 



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

24-743 Clayton & Mary Felchle 2023 Lot 18, Block 22, Wachter's 3rd 50% Homestead Credit $248,500 $148,500

24-744 Clayton & Mary Felchle 2024 Lot 18, Block 22, Wachter's 3rd 50% Homestead Credit $266,400 $166,400

24-748 Robert & Gayle Moyle 2024 S80' of Lots 15-18, Block 4, McKenzie's 50% Homestead Credit $294,300 $194,300

24-750 Steven Blakely 2022 1976 Marshfield 66 x 14, VIN# 29553 Mobile home removed $7,484 $0

24-751 Steven Blakely 2023 1976 Marshfield 66 x 14, VIN# 29553 Mobile home removed $7,983 $0

24-752 Steven Blakely 2024 1976 Marshfield 66 x 14, VIN# 29553 Mobile home removed $7,983 $0

24-753 Etta Schue 2024 Lot 11, Block 13, Register's 2nd 100% Homestead Credit $277,300 $77,300

24-754
Robert & Jayme 
Holmberg 2024 Lot 10, Block 1, Horizon Heights 1st 50% Homestead Credit $357,000 $257,000

24-755 Kevin & Christine Soule 2024

Block 21, Lounsberry Outlots, Beg pt 500' S 
& 180' E of NW corner, E 117' S 50' W 117' 
N 50' to beg 100% Homestead Credit $168,600 $0



1 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT  
FOR PROVISION OF 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

This agreement is made this 16th day of December 2024, by and between Burleigh 
County, North Dakota, a political subdivision, and Emmons County, North Dakota, a 
political subdivision.  

WHEREAS, Burleigh County and Emmons County are organized and operated 
pursuant to Title 11 of the North Dakota Century Code and have the authority to enter into a 
Joint Powers Agreement pursuant to Section 54.40.3.01, North Dakota Century Code and 
Article VII, Section 10 of the North Dakota Constitution.  

WHEREAS, North Dakota Century Code (N.D.C.C) 37-17.1·07 provides that "each 
county shall maintain an emergency management organization that serves the entire county 
or must be a member of a regional emergency management organization that serves more 
than one county"; and  

WHEREAS, Emmons County has been challenged to maintain an effective 
emergency management program based on its part-time requirements, and after exploring 
various options to provide for an emergency management program has determined the most 
effective method would be to pay for services; and  

WHEREAS, Burleigh County maintains highly qualified fulltime staff in its 
emergency management program, is willing and capable of providing emergency 
management services, and has determined that it can leverage efficiency within its own 
program to provide fee-based emergency management services.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and in consideration of the 
mutual covenants contained herein the parties agree as follows:  

1. Scope of Services:  Burleigh County and Emmons County agree that Burleigh County,
through its Emergency Management Department, shall furnish services to and for
Emmons County by providing emergency management services in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Burleigh County assumes the obligation to
provide such services through its Emergency Management employees consistent with the
terms of this Agreement in compliance with established professional standards. In
furtherance, but not in limitation of the scope of services designated herein, such duties,
obligations and responsibilities shall include the following:

A. Burleigh County shall incorporate the National Incident Management System, which
includes the Incident Command System (ICS)/Unified Command System (UCS),
into the local emergency operations plan (LEOP).



2 

 

B. Burleigh County shall develop, review, and update the Local Emergency Operations 
Plan (LEOP) to ensure it adequately addresses all hazards and issues that may arise 
during an emergency/disaster, identify resources including local, private, voluntary, 
and mutual aid, and conduct planning meetings to review and identify roles and 
responsibilities.  
 

C. Burleigh County shall manage the Emmons County's Emergency Management 
Program Grant (EMPG) to include the submission of a grant application with budget 
and work plan.  Further, Burleigh County shall complete the items in the work plan, 
provide an accounting for grant funds, submit reimbursement requests, including 
proper documentation and proof of payments, submit quarterly progress reports, and 
maintain grant records, including the inventory of equipment purchases.  
 

D. Burleigh County shall complete a training plan for Emmons County responders 
based upon Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program results and NIMS 
training requirements. (Based upon monies allotted via budget and/or grants).  

 
2. Term:  The agreement of this term shall be for a period of one year beginning upon the 

effective date of January 1, 2025 and terminating on December 31, 2025.  This agreement 
shall renew yearly unless either party delivers a sixty (60) day written notice, at any time 
during the contract period, to the other party of its intention to discontinue further 
services under this agreement.  
 

3. Compensation:  Emmons County agrees to pay Burleigh County for services to be 
provided under the terms of this Agreement as follows:  

 
A. A base monthly fee of $1,500.00 will be paid to Burleigh County to offset the 

current Emergency Management Program budget since services will be provided in 
day-to-day activities.  
 

B. Emmons County agrees to pay additional fees based on an hourly rate for dedicated 
service hours and specific operational costs identified per month. A cost estimate is 
provided in Attachment A (Budget).  
 

C. The fees generated through Attachment A will not include hours of work required to 
support emergency and disaster response.  Those fees will be a separate cost and 
based on regular or overtime hours and apportioned to supported jurisdictions.  
 

D. As the program matures, the monthly fee will adjust according to a documented 
work history.  Depending on workload requirements, the service provider may need 
to increase staff to sustain service goals.  

  



3 

4. Insurance:  Each County will agree to assume its own liability for claims of any nature
including all costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees which may result from or arise out of
this agreement.

Burleigh County shall secure and keep in force during the term of this agreement, from
insurance companies, government self-insurance pools or government self-insurance
pools or government self-retention funds, authorized to do business in North Dakota the
following insurance policies:  commercial general liability; automobile liability; and
workforce safety insurance covering all claims of any nature which may in any manner
arise out of or result from this agreement.  The minimum limits of liability required are
$250,000 per person and $500,000 per occurrence for commercial general liability and
automobile liability coverages, and statutory limits for workforce safety insurance
compensation.  The Counties shall furnish certificates of insurance evidencing these
coverages are in effect and providing that the coverages may not be canceled or modified
without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other County.

5. Status of Burleigh County Employees:  In the performance of the services rendered by
Burleigh County through its designated employees are employees of Burleigh County and
not employees of Emmons County.

6. Relationship of Parties:  This Agreement shall not be construed to create any form of any
employment relationship between any Burleigh County Emergency Management
Department employee and Emmons County under the provisions of this Agreement.  It is
the intention of the parties hereto to maintain separate and distinct organizations, and
Burleigh County through its designated employees shall be acting as an independent
contractor in providing services to and for the benefit of Emmons County.  Burleigh
County shall be responsible to control and supervise all its employed Emergency
Management Department employees and to pay compensation to the same for all wages,
salaries, taxes, withholding payments, fees, as well as other professional education,
professional liability insurance premiums, and contributions to any pension plans.
Burleigh County shall not claim that Emmons County is responsible for the payment of
any of the foregoing payments, withholdings, contributions, or taxes in relationship to its
designated employees.

7. Indemnification and Liability of Parties:  Each party to this Agreement shall be
responsible for the claims, losses, damages, and expenses, which may arise out of the
negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of that party or that party's agents, employees, or
representatives acting in the scope of their duties in this Agreement.  Each party to this
Agreement agrees to inform the other in the event such party is notified of an
investigation or claim arising out of the services provided under the terms and conditions
of this Agreement and shall provide reasonable access to the information involving such
investigation or claim.  Each party shall further notify the other party of the disposition of
any such investigation or claim.



4 

8. Termination:  This Agreement shall terminate upon the expiration of the term established
herein.  Either party may further terminate this Agreement for breach of any of the duties
outlined herein upon ninety (90) days written notice delivered to the other party.  Upon
termination of this Agreement, as provided for above, neither party shall have any further
obligation or duty hereunder except for those obligations which have accrued prior to the
date of termination.

9. Governing Law:  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by
the laws of the State of North Dakota and shall further be subject to all applicable federal
laws, rules, and regulations.

10. Compliance with Laws and Regulations:  It is the intention of Emmons County and
Burleigh County to fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations in performing
their respective duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.  The parties shall
cooperate during the entire term of this Agreement to assist each party in fully complying
with the laws and regulations required in providing emergency management services.

11. Notices:  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be
deemed properly given at the time it is mailed, properly addressed and postage prepaid to
the addresses specified below, or to such other and further addresses as may be specified
in writing:

Burleigh County Auditor Emmons County Auditor 
221 N 5th St 100 4th St NW 
Bismarck, ND  58501 Linton, ND  58552 

Dated this _16th_ day of _December_ 2024, Burleigh County: 

BY: ______________________________________ 
        Brian Bitner, Commission Chairperson 

Dated this _3rd_ day of _December_ 2024, Emmons County: 

BY: ____________________________________
        Erin Magrum, Commission Chairperson 



Attachment A 

Yearly Monthly 

Burleigh County Fixed Operating Expenses/Supplies 
 $      18,000.00 $1,500.00 

Emmons County Emergency Management Budget 
EM Contract Per Hour  $      13,200.00  $        1,100.00 

*Estimate 27.5 hours/month
FICA  $           818.40  $             68.20 
Medicare  $           191.40  $             15.95 
Other Expenses  $        2,000.00  $           166.67 

Program Cost  $      34,209.80  $        2,850.82 



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 6 







Petition for Removal by Governor – N.D.C.C. § 44-11-01, et. seq. 
 
The governor may remove from office any … county auditor, … county treasurer, …whenever it 
appears to the governor by a preponderance of the evidence after a hearing as provided in this 
chapter, that the officer has been guilty of misconduct, malfeasance, crime in office, neglect 
of duty in office, or of habitual substance abuse or gross incompetency. 
 
A petition for removal must be filed with the attorney general. 
Charges against the official may be made by petition of 50 qualified electors of the county or 
by the state’s attorney. 
 
When a petition is filed, the attorney general shall conduct an investigation within 30 days. 
The attorney general then makes a recommendation whether a removal proceeding should be 
conducted and, if so, whether the accused officer should be suspended during the pendency of 
the proceeding. 
 
After receiving the attorney general’s recommendation, the governor shall then determine 
whether to proceed with appointment of a special commissioner. If the governor chooses not 
to proceed, notice and a summary of reasons for the decision goes to the persons who filed the 
petition. If the governor chooses to proceed, the governor can request the county’s state’s 
attorney to appear and prosecute. With the governor’s approval, the state’s attorney can 
request the attorney general or a state’s attorney of another county to prosecute. 
 
A hearing shall be held within 30 days of the appointment of the special commissioner. Within 
10 days of the hearing, the special commissioner shall provide a report of proceedings, summary 
of testimony, findings as to whether any allegations were proven, exhibits,  and evidence, and 
a recommendation whether the accused officer should be removed from office. 
 
If the governor removes the officer, the board has five days to fill the position. The removed 
person can appeal the decision to the district court. 
 
 
Recall of elected officials – N.D.C.C. § 44-08-21 & N.D.Const. Art. III, § 10 
 
Any elected official … of any county … shall be subject to recall by petition of electors equal in 
number to 25% of those who voted at the preceding general election for office of governor in 
the … county … in which the official is to be recalled. 
 
The petition shall be filed with the official with who a petition for nomination to the office in 
question is filed (county auditor), who shall call a special election if he finds the petition valid 
and sufficient. No elector may remove his name from a recall petition. 
 
The name of the official to be recalled shall be placed on the ballot unless he resigns within 10 
days after the filing of the petition. Other candidates for the office may be nominated in a 
manner provided by law. No official shall be subject twice to recall during the term for which 
he was elected. 
 
 
Resignation of officers – N.D.C.C. § 44-02-02 
 
The resignation of an elective county officer must be in writing and made by filing or depositing 
the resignation in the county auditor’s office except the county auditor’s resignation is filed or 
deposited with the board of county commissioners.  



Converting an elected office to an appointed office – N.D.C.C. Ch. 11-10.2 
 
The county and its citizens may, if included in the [home rule] charter and implemented through 
ordinances: … provide for county elected and appointed officers and employees, their 
selection, powers, duties, qualification, and compensation, and the terms of county appointed 
officers and employees. … A home rule charter may not diminish the term of office for which a 
current county officer was elected, redesignate that elected office during that term as 
appointed, or reduce the salary of the office of that term. N.D.C.C. § 11-09.1-05(6) 
 
The Board of County Commissioners may follow state law converting the elected offices of the 
county auditor/treasurer and the county recorder into appointed offices. Any resolution to 
convert an elected office to an appointed office shall not shorten the term for which the official 
was elected nor reduce the salary of the official’s office for that term. Burleigh County Home 
Rule Charter, Art. III § 3. 
 
A county may, without requiring local citizens to permit county home rule powers, … 
redesignate an elective county office as an appointive office … N.D.C.C. § 11-10.2-01(1)(c) 
 
The redesignation of a county office as elective or appointive, may be accomplished by 
resolution of the board of county commissioners, subject to the right of referendum in the 
county electors. N.D.C.C. § 11-10.2-02 
 

1. Board of County Commissioners, by majority vote, adopts a preliminary resolution 
redesignating a county office as appointive. 

2. The complete text of the proposed plan is published in the official newspaper at least 
one time during two different weeks within the 30 days immediately following adoption 
of the preliminary resolution. 

3. The board of county commissioners shall hold public hearings and community forums or 
other suitable means to: 

a. Disseminate information; 

b. Receive suggestions and comments; 

c. Encourage public discussion of the purpose, conclusion, and recommendations of 
the plan. 

4. Within 2 years after adoption of the preliminary resolution, the board of county 
commissioners may by final resolution approve or amend the plan and approve it for 
implementation according to its terms. 

The final resolution may be referred to the qualified electors by a petition protesting the plan 

1. The petition must be signed by 10% or more of the total number of qualified electors of 
the county voting for governor at the most recent gubernatorial election. 

2. The petition must be filed with the county auditor before 4:00 p.m. on the 30th day after 
the final resolution is adopted. 

3. Within 10 days of filing, the auditor shall determine whether the petition contains the 
signatures of a sufficient number of qualified electors. 

a. Any insufficiencies may be cured by filing an amended petition within 10 days 
after declaration of insufficiency. 

4. If a sufficient, timely petition is filed with the auditor, the final resolution is suspended. 



5. The board of county commissioners shall then reconsider the referred resolution and 
either: 

a. Repeal the resolution in its entirety; or  

b. Submit the resolution to a vote of the county electors at the next regular 
election. 

i. If submitted to a vote, the complete text of the resolution is to be 
published in the official newspaper of the county within 14-30 days of the 
election. 

ii. If a majority of voters approves the resolution, the plan incorporated in 
the resolution is effective and becomes operative according to its terms 
as if it had not been suspended. 

  



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 8 



BURLEIGH COUNTY 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

316 N. 5th St. 
Bismarck, ND 58501 

701-712-8353

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DECEMBER 11, 2024 

MARK SPLONSKOWSKI 
County Auditor 

LEIGH J JACOBS, CPA 
Finance Director 

2023 Investment Report to Burleigh County Commission 

Please place the attached 2023Investment Report and Q1, Q2, Q3 2024 Summary of Return on 
Investment to the Burleigh County Commission on the next Burleigh County Board agenda. 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
Receive the 2023 Investment Report as required by the County Investment Policy. 

BACKGROUND: 

The County Investment Policy requires a quarterly and annual investment report to be delivered to the 
Burleigh County Commission. This requirement has been neglected in recent years. Consequently, the 
Finance Department prepared an annual report for 2023 to get the County up to date on its reporting 
requirements to the Commission. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board review the attached 2023 Investment Report and Q1, Q2, Q3 2024 
Summary of Return on Investment. Staff will be available at the meeting to answer questions. 



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
REPORT ON INVESTMENT RETURN 

FY 2023 

Prepared by 

BURLEIGH COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

December 6th, 2024



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
REPORT ON INVESTMENT RETURN 

FY 2023 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The County’s investment policy requires an annual report to management on the following topics:  disclosure of all transactions during the year; 
summary of the year’s total investment return; indication of any areas of policy concern (if identified); and suggested changes to investment 
strategy.  

TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR 

The County made only twenty-two (22) active investment decisions during the year. This equates to less than two active decisions per month. 
All the decisions but one underperformed Treasuries. Some of the decisions carried a heavy price in terms of opportunity costs, i.e. the 
opportunity to invest in higher-yielding US Treasuries. For instance, the decision on February 16th to invest $22,500,000 in Certificates of Deposit 
(CDs) with First International Bank and Trust (“First International”) cost the County $66,000 in potential interest revenues from US Treasuries in 
2023 alone, with the costs continuing into 2024 on 12-month CDs. It’s unclear if the County received bids for this CD despite its huge cost at 
$22.5m. On February 28th, the County purchased a 12-month CD with Choice Bank (“Choice”) for $6,000,000 yielding 4.50%. It’s unclear if the 
County received bids for this purchase; however, rates on a 12-month Treasury which the County purchased at Bank of North Dakota (“BND”) on 
February 2nd were 4.67%, and rates had risen to 5.03% by the end of February. The opportunity cost of this decision exceeded $26,000 in 2023. 

The County made passive investment decisions during the year. For example, the County failed to capitalize on rising interest rates. The County 
left $30,000,000 in its First International money market earning less than 1% during January when our Wells Fargo Sweep account was paying 
4.04% at the beginning of the month (see Appendix A.1.). The County prints daily reports from Wells Fargo which report on the previous day’s 
yield in the account; therefore, the County knew rates were far higher at Wells Fargo, yet the County failed to transfer money from First 
International to take advantage of the higher rates at Wells Fargo. This inaction cost the county $75,000 in opportunity cost in the month of 
January alone.  

In another example, when the CDs purchased from First International on February 16th began to mature, the County on May 23rd deposited the 
proceeds into First International’s money markets which yielded almost one percent (1%) less than similar Treasuries. The cost to the County 
over $9,000 per month in lost potential interest revenue while rates held.  

In another example, the County allowed sales taxes to sit uninvested at the Bank of North Dakota throughout the year. At the beginning of 2023, 
the County held over $18,500,000 in uninvested cash at the Bank of North Dakota earning only .38%. Although the County invested much of this 
idle cash in February, the County went four months – from April 4th to August 2nd– without making a single investment at BND, despite collecting 



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
REPORT ON INVESTMENT RETURN 

FY 2023 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

2 
 

sales taxes monthly. On average, the County held $6,181,606 in uninvested cash at the Bank of North Dakota throughout the year. Excluding Q1 
2023, the County averaged $4,700,000 in uninvested cash during the remaining months of the year. The failure to invest sales taxes cost the 
County $236,000.  

The County’s decision to leave cash uninvested at BND impacted Morton County, as well. Burleigh County has a fiduciary obligation to manage 
Morton County’s sales taxes held in trust at BND and pledged to our joint detention center bond. Under the bond documents, only the Burleigh 
County Auditor/Treasurer may invest sales taxes for Burleigh and Morton Counties. Morton’s uninvested cash balance averaged $2,157,618 
throughout the year, with an average of $1,750,000 during the last three quarters of the year. The failure to invest Morton County’s sales taxes 
cost Morton County nearly $78,000. 

RETURN ON INVESTMENT 

Bank Average Balance Interest $ Earned Earned Interest Rate Benchmarked Interest Benchmark Interest Rate
Bank of North Dakota - Burleigh County 28,120,083.56$                                  1,028,334.81$                                      3.66% 1,264,499.56$                       4.50% a (236,164.75)$                                                  (0.84)%
Bank of the West 962,824.35                                          18.80                                                       0.0020% 10,559.42                               4.48% (10,540.62)                                                      (4.48)%
BNC National Bank 3,178,344.78                                      122,128.47                                            3.8425% 156,680.93                             4.93% (34,552.46)                                                      (1.09)%
Bravera Bank 2,124,727.49                                      96,548.12                                               4.54% 109,728.38                             5.16% (13,180.26)                                                      (0.62)%
Choice Bank 6,611,017.22                                      267,684.66                                            4.05% 303,860.89                             4.60% (36,176.22)                                                      (0.55)%
First Interational Bank 30,655,097.92                                    1,247,903.47                                         4.07% 1,531,684.80                         5.00% (283,781.33)                                                    (0.93)%
Wells Fargo (Sweep) -  General Fund 14,046,068.21                                    683,718.63                                            4.87% 687,958.91                             4.90% (4,240.28)                                                         (0.03)%
Wells Fargo (Sweep) - "PEG" 3,000,000.00                                      16,819.47                                               0.56% 149,238.08                             4.97% (132,418.61)                                                    (4.41)%

Subtotal, Burleigh County 88,698,163.53                                    3,463,156.43                                         3.90% 4,214,210.96                         4.75% (751,054.53)                                                    (0.85)%

Bank of North Dakota - Morton County 4,571,057.97                                      151,344.94                                            3.31% 229,145.55                             5.01% a (77,800.61)                                                      (1.70)%

Grand Total, Burleigh & Morton 93,269,221.49$                                  3,614,501.37$                                      3.88% 4,443,356.51$                       4.76% (828,855.14)$                                                  (0.89)%

a Note: Morton County's benchmark exceeds Burleigh's because Morton on average 47% of their cash uninvested in BND's money market. We benchmarked money markets against 1-mo. Treasuries.
Given the inverted yield curve, this credited Morton's benchmark with the higher-yielding 1-month Treasury rates. 

Difference Over/(Under) Benchmark

 

Using Treasuries as a benchmark, the County underperformed the market by $751,055 during the year. Adding Morton County brings the total 
to $828,855. Much of this comes from the failure to invest sales tax proceeds; failure to invest the $3,000,000 “PEG” balance at Wells Fargo; 
failure to capitalize on rising rates; and a handful of poorly conceived and executed investment decisions involving CDs at First International and 
Choice.  

Every decision the County made during the period except one performed below the benchmark. The only other exception is the BND sales tax 
accounts which are invested in Treasuries; however, the County made the questionable decision of purchasing $5,000,000 in Treasuries 
maturing in January 2025. The County should have refrained from purchasing securities in that account with such a long maturity because this 



BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
REPORT ON INVESTMENT RETURN 

FY 2023 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

3 
 

purchase conflicted with our bond repayment plan. Ultimately, these investments had to be sold at a discount to purchase investments that 
properly coincided with our bond repayment schedule. 

AUDITOR/TREASURER AUDITOR/TREASURER DEPUTY
VETTER SPLONSKOWSKI AUDITOR/TREASURER TOTAL

 1/1/2023 - 3/31/2023 4/1/2023 - 12/31/2023 1/1/2023 - 12/31/2023 FY 2023

Bank of North Dakota - Burleigh County (89,779.03)$                             (146,385.72)$                          (236,164.75)$                          (236,164.75)$   
Bank of North Dakota - Morton County (27,743.64)                               (50,056.97)                               (77,800.61)                               (77,800.61)       
Bank of the West (10,540.62)                               -                                             (10,540.62)                               (10,540.62)       
BNC National Bank (21,095.86)                               (13,456.60)                               (34,552.46)                               (34,552.46)       
Bravera Bank (6,902.47)                                 (6,277.80)                                 (13,180.26)                               (13,180.26)       
Choice Bank (29,894.38)                               (6,281.85)                                 (36,176.22)                               (36,176.22)       
First Interational Bank (204,615.86)                             (79,165.47)                               (283,781.33)                             (283,781.33)     
Wells Fargo (Sweep) -  General Fund (1,886.49)                                 (2,353.79)                                 (4,240.28)                                 (4,240.28)          
Wells Fargo (Sweep) - "PEG" (27,163.97)                               (105,254.64)                             (132,418.61)                             (132,418.61)     

(419,622.31)$                          (409,232.84)$                          (828,855.14)$                          (828,855.14)$   

TIMELINE OF RETURN ON INVESTMENT BY ELECTED OFFICIAL TERM IN OFFICE

 

POLICY CONCERNS 

The County’s investment policy is adequate; however, the County is not following the policy objectives. For example, the County went four 
months – April 4th to August 2nd – without making a single investment at BND, despite receiving sales taxes monthly.  Sales taxes accumulated in 
the BND money market earning around .60% (6/10ths of one percent). These decisions run contrary to the “Yield” objective of our investment 
strategy. 

CHANGES TO INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The County’s investment practices prioritize convenience above the policy objectives. For example, the County accepts a lower rate of return 
than the benchmark for the convenience of using money markets. The County should re-structure its investment strategy to comply with the 
investment policy. Convenience should be considered only after other investment objectives are achieved.



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

4 
 

Burleigh County has a formal investment policy which guides investment decisions. The policy requires annual reporting to the Burleigh County 
Commission (hereafter “the Commission.”) The purpose of the required annual report is to disclose all transactions during the year; to 
summarize the year’s total investment return; to indicate any areas of policy concern (if identified); and to suggest changes to investment 
strategy.  

TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR 

At year end 2022, the County held $81,290,773 in cash and investments per our 2022 financial statement audit report. This amount does not 
include fiduciary funds held in trust for other entities such as property taxes received on behalf of the City of Bismarck, the School District, etc.  

The table below summarizes the investment decisions the County made during Q1 2024: 

Date Bank Decision Effect of Decision Auditor
1/24/2023 Choice Bank Deposit $1,004,244 in CD proceeds in Money Market @ 3.30% Underperformed Treasuries by over 1.27% VETTER

2/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $15,628,128 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $3,802,003 of Burleigh sales taxes; part is invested too long - 01/2025 VETTER
2/6/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $1,172,764 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $2,629,238 of Burleigh sales taxes VETTER

2/16/2023 First International Purchase $22,500,000 in CDs at 4.03% - 4.18% Underperformed Treasuries by .80% by weighted avg. VETTER
2/28/2023 Choice Bank Purchase $6,000,000 in 12 Month CD @ 4.50% Underperformed Treasuries by .53% VETTER

3/6/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $1,825,793 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $3,752,976 of Burleigh sales taxes VETTER
3/17/2023 First International Deposit $3,532,054 in CD proceeds in Money Market @ 4.37% Overperformed 1-mo.  Treasury by .11%; underperformed 2-mo. by .12% VETTER
3/30/2023 BNC National Bank Purchase 3/6/12 Months CD @ 4.15% - 4.50% Underperformed Treasuries by .39% by weighted avg, VETTER

4/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $3,248,483 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $3,626,379 of Burleigh sales taxes SPLONSKOWSKI
4/18/2023 Choice Bank Purchase $500,000 in 12 Month CD @ 4.50% Underperformed Treasuries by .31% SPLONSKOWSKI
5/23/2023 First International Deposit $11,362,747 in CD proceeds in Money Market @ 4.67% Underperformed Treasuries by .96%; underperformed Wells Fargo by .25% SPLONSKOWSKI
June 2023 BNC National Bank Left $47,459 in cash or CD interest in money market @ .5% Underperformed Treasuries by 4.81% SPLONSKOWSKI
6/29/2023 BNC National Bank Renew 3 Month CD of $1,147,019 for 12 Months @ 4.70% Underperformed Treasuries by .73% SPLONSKOWSKI
7/15/2023 Bravera Renew 10 month CD of $680,000 for 12 Months @ 5.06% Underperformed Treasuries by .29% SPLONSKOWSKI

8/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $7,000,000 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $3,922,328 of Burleigh sales taxes SPLONSKOWSKI
8/14/2023 Bravera Transferred matured investments from Wells Fargo to Bravera money market @ 5.12% - WF Sweep was 5.19% Underperformed Treasuries by .27%; underperformed WF sweep by .07% SPLONSKOWSKI
8/17/2023 First International Renew 6 Month CDs of $3,750,000 for 6 months @ 5.00% Underperformed Treasuries by .5% SPLONSKOWSKI
8/31/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $1,795,479 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $5,095,620 of Burleigh sales taxes SPLONSKOWSKI
9/12/2023 Choice Bank Transfer via check $1,000,000 to Bravera money market at 5.12% Underperformed Treasuries by .27%; loss of 2 days interest while check in transit SPLONSKOWSKI
9/28/2023 BNC National Bank Renew 6 Month CD of $1,147,019 for 12 Months @ 5.06% Underperformed Treasuries by .42% SPLONSKOWSKI
9/29/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $3,800,000 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $5,640,751 of Burleigh sales taxes SPLONSKOWSKI
10/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota Invest $2,324,000 of Burleigh sales taxes Failed to invest $3,319,334 of Burleigh sales taxes SPLONSKOWSKI

 

Auditor Splonskowski began his term of office on April 1, 2023. Prior to this, Leo Vetter served as the County Auditor/Treasurer. The Deputy 
Auditor/Treasurer position, responsible for investments under the Auditor, was fully staffed and with no turnover during the year under both 
Auditor/Treasurers. The table below summarizes the opportunity cost of lost interest revenue under the respective Auditors during the year, 
based on when the decision was made: 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

5 
 

AUDITOR/TREASURER AUDITOR/TREASURER DEPUTY
VETTER SPLONSKOWSKI AUDITOR/TREASURER TOTAL

 1/1/2023 - 3/31/2023 4/1/2023 - 12/31/2023 1/1/2023 - 12/31/2023 FY 2023

Bank of North Dakota - Burleigh County (89,779.03)$                             (146,385.72)$                          (236,164.75)$                          (236,164.75)$   
Bank of North Dakota - Morton County (27,743.64)                               (50,056.97)                               (77,800.61)                               (77,800.61)       
Bank of the West (10,540.62)                               -                                             (10,540.62)                               (10,540.62)       
BNC National Bank (21,095.86)                               (13,456.60)                               (34,552.46)                               (34,552.46)       
Bravera Bank (6,902.47)                                 (6,277.80)                                 (13,180.26)                               (13,180.26)       
Choice Bank (29,894.38)                               (6,281.85)                                 (36,176.22)                               (36,176.22)       
First Interational Bank (204,615.86)                             (79,165.47)                               (283,781.33)                             (283,781.33)     
Wells Fargo (Sweep) -  General Fund (1,886.49)                                 (2,353.79)                                 (4,240.28)                                 (4,240.28)          
Wells Fargo (Sweep) - "PEG" (27,163.97)                               (105,254.64)                             (132,418.61)                             (132,418.61)     

(419,622.31)$                          (409,232.84)$                          (828,855.14)$                          (828,855.14)$   

TIMELINE OF RETURN ON INVESTMENT BY ELECTED OFFICIAL TERM IN OFFICE

 

In total the County made twenty-two investment decisions during the year. This amounts to less than two investment decisions per month. The 
County made non-decisions or passive decisions during the Year such as allowing funds to mature into money markets (e.g., Treasuries maturing 
into BND’s money market). The County failed in all decisions but one to match or exceed the return on Treasuries (excluding active investments 
at BND in Treasuries). Most of the loss during the year stems from one passive and two active decisions at First International and from a handful 
of passive decisions at BND. 

The problematic decisions at First International began with the passive decision to leave cash in the First International money market for the first 
forty-six (46) days of the year. The First International money market averaged 1.22% during this period. 

The County knew this rate was far below the rate at Wells Fargo. The County prints daily reports from its Wells Fargo Sweep account. These 
reports showed the Wells Fargo Sweep exceeded the rate at First International for much of 2022. See the chart below. See also an example of 
the daily report from December 15, 2022 at Appendix A.2.  Despite knowing this, the County allowed over $30,000,000 to sit in the First 
International money market for the first six weeks of the year.  Furthermore, US Treasuries paid more than the Wells Fargo Sweep account. The 
decision to leave cash in the First International money market cost the County $125,000 compared with investing in Treasuries. Even the simple 
act of transferring cash to our Wells Fargo account during this forty-six-day period would have earned the County an additional $100,000. 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

6 
 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

Interest Rate Comparison 2022-2023

1M Treasury WF Sweep FIBT MM FIBT CDs

$22.5M CDs
Purchased at FIBT 
on 02/16/2023  
average yield of 
4.10%

FIBT Money 
Market yield 
increased to 
4.17% by 
02/28/2023

FIBT Money 
Market Yield
1% on 
01/31/2023

Deposited addtional $9.2M 
into FIBT Money Market on 
06/24/2022



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

7 
 

In an active investment decision, the County on February 16th, 2023, made the decision to purchase $22,500,000 in First International CDs.  
These CDs averaged 4.10%. On the same day, the County earned 4.31% in the Wells Fargo Sweep account (see Appendix A.3.), and Treasuries 
averaged 4.86%. Twelve days later, the First International money market yield at 4.17% exceeded the rate on our CDs. The decision to 
purchase CDs instead of higher-yielding Treasuries cost the County $66,000 during the year.  

There’s no indication the County tried to mitigate the effects of this decision under a new Auditor/Treasurer. To the contrary, the County 
deposited proceeds from these CDs at First International in May, when half these CDs matured. The County deposited the proceeds plus interest 
of $11,362,747 into money markets earning .96% less than Treasuries. This decision cost the County more than $9,000 a month over Treasuries 
while the rates held. 

The passive decision (or non-decision) to leave cash uninvested at BND cost the County $236,000 during the year. At one point, the County went 
four months – from April 4th to August 2nd– without making a single investment at BND, despite collecting sales taxes monthly. Under our sales 
tax bond documents, the responsibility to invest sales taxes, including Morton County, lies with the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. The 
failure to invest Morton County sales taxes held at BND cost Morton County $77,800.  

Of the loss at BND, $146,000 happened during the last three quarters of the year. During the last three quarters of 2023, Burleigh County 
averaged $4,700,000 in uninvested cash. During the same period, Morton lost $50,000 in potential interest income on an average of $1,750,000 
in uninvested cash.  

Another decision was the passive decision to leave over $2,000,000 in the BNC National Bank account during Q1 earning only .75% interest.  By 
simply transferring this cash to Wells Fargo Sweep the County would have earned over $18,000 in additional interest revenues. Treasuries 
earned even more during the period. 

In still another example, the County purchased a $6,000,000 CD with Choice Bank on February 28th paying 4.50%. At the same time, the County 
could have purchased a Treasury with the same maturity earning 5.03%. This decision cost the County $26,000 during the year. 

Another costly passive decision was the decision to maintain a $3,000,000 balance in the Wells Fargo Zero Balance account rather than reduce 
this balance to $0, as the name implies, and invest the $3,000,000 overage. Although the County adopted a zero-balance position in this account 
in 2024 at the request of the Finance Department, the County lost approximately $130,000 in earning potential on the $3,000,000 balance 
during 2023.



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

8 
 

The table below outlines provides a detailed listing of the investment decisions made during the year.  
Date Bank Description Amount Investment Decision Alternative Decisions Affect of Investment Decision Decision Type Auditor

1/24/2023 Choice Bank Liquid 1,004,243.60    Deposit CD proceeds in Money Market @ 3.30% Purchase 1-month Treasury @ 4.57% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Passive VETTER
2/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Note 9128283V0 3,908,569.33    Purchase Treasury Maturing 8/3/2023 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active VETTER
2/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912796Y37 3,917,766.23    Purchase Treasury maturing 1/31/2024 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active VETTER
2/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Note 9128285Z9 3,921,213.23    Purchase Treasury maturing 7/31/2024 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active VETTER
2/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Note 91282CFA4 3,880,578.73    Purchase Treasury maturing 1/31/2025 Purchase shorter-term investment Invested for too long. County had to sell at a loss to fund bond escrow account. Active VETTER
2/6/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Note 91282CGG0 1,172,764.29    Purchase Treasury maturing 1/31/2025 Purchase shorter-term investment Invested for too long. County had to sell at a loss to fund bond escrow account Active VETTER

2/16/2023 First International 1 Month 1,875,000.00    Purchase 1 Month CD @ 4.03% Purchase Treasury @ 4.61% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 3 Months 7,500,000.00    Purchase 3 Months CD @ 4.08% Purchase Treasury @ 4.82% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 3 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 3 Months CD @ 4.08% Purchase Treasury @ 4.82% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 6 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 6 Months CD @ 4.13% Purchase Treasury @ 5.02% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 12 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 12 Months CD @ 4.18% Purchase Treasury @ 5.01% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 1 Month 1,875,000.00    Purchase 1 Month CD @ 4.03% Purchase Treasury @ 4.61% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 3 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 3 Months CD @ 4.08% Purchase Treasury @ 4.82% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 6 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 6 Months CD @ 4.13% Purchase Treasury @ 5.02% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/16/2023 First International 12 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 12 Months CD @ 4.18% Purchase Treasury @ 5.01% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
2/28/2023 Choice Bank 12 Months 6,000,000.00    Purchase 12 Month CD @ 4.50% Purchase 12 Month Treasury @ 5.03% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER

3/6/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912796Z51 1,825,792.50    Purchased Treasury with Reserve fund maturing 8/31/2023 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active VETTER
3/17/2023 First International Liquid 3,532,053.53    Deposit CD proceeds in Money Market @ 4.37% Purchase 1-month Treasury @ 4.26% Gain over 1M; loss over 2M Treasury at 4.49% Passive VETTER
3/30/2023 Bank of the West Money Market 1,162,893.60    Invest in BNC CD @ 4.15% Purchase 3 Month Treasury @ 4.69% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
3/30/2023 BNC National Bank 3 Months 1,147,018.68    Purchase 3 Months CD @ 4.15% Purchase 3 Month Treasury @ 4.94% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
3/30/2023 BNC National Bank 6 Months 1,147,018.68    Purchase 6 Months CD @ 4.30% Purchase 6 Month Treasury @ 4.89% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER
3/30/2023 BNC National Bank 12 Months 1,147,018.68    Purchase 12 Months CD @ 4.50% Purchase 12 Month Treasury @ 4.64% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active VETTER

4/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912796CS6 977,281.15        Purchased Treasury maturing 9/28/2023 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active SPLONSKOWSKI
4/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912796CS6 2,271,201.39    Purchased Treasury with Reserve fund maturing 9/28/2023 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active SPLONSKOWSKI

4/18/2023 Choice Bank 12 Months 500,000.00        Purchase 12 Month CD @ 4.50% Purchase 12 Month Treasury @ 4.81% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active SPLONSKOWSKI
5/23/2023 First International Liquid 11,362,746.91  Deposit CD proceeds in Money Market @ 4.67% Purchase 1-month Treasury @ 5.63% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Passive SPLONSKOWSKI
June 2023 BNC National Bank Liquid 47,458.67          Leave cash or CD interest in Money Market @ .5% Purchase 1 Month Treasury @ 5.31% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Passive SPLONSKOWSKI
6/29/2023 BNC National Bank 12 Months 1,147,018.68    Renew 3 Month CD for 12 Months @ 4.70% Purchase 12 Month Treasury @ 5.43% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active SPLONSKOWSKI
7/15/2023 Bravera 12 Months 680,000.00        Renew 10 month CD for 12 Months @ 5.06% Purchase 12 Month Treasury @ 5.35% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active SPLONSKOWSKI

8/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912797GB7 7,000,000.00    Purchased Treasury maturing 7/11/2024 Invest all available funds Invested a portion of available cash Active SPLONSKOWSKI
8/14/2023 Bravera Liquid 3,000,000.00    Transferred matured investments from Wells Fargo to Money Market @ 5.12% - WF   Purchase 1 Month Treasury @ 5.39% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active SPLONSKOWSKI
8/17/2023 First International 6 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 6 Months CD @ 5.00% Purchase Treasury @ 5.50% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Passive
8/17/2023 First International 6 Months 1,875,000.00    Purchase 6 Months CD @ 5.00% Purchase Treasury @ 5.50% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Passive
8/31/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912797GP6 1,795,478.88    Purchased Treasury maturing 2/29/2024 with Reserve fund Invest all available funds Invested a portion of available cash Active SPLONSKOWSKI
9/12/2023 Choice Bank Liquid 1,000,000.00    Checking withdrawl from MM to Bravera @ 5.12% on 9/14 Purchase 1-month Treasury @ 5.39% Loss of interest while check in transit; loss of interest on higher paying Treasury Active SPLONSKOWSKI
9/28/2023 BNC National Bank 12 Months 1,147,018.68    Renew 6 Month CD for 12 Months @ 5.06% Purchase 12 Month Treasury @ 5.48% Loss of opportunity to invest in higher paying Treasuries Active SPLONSKOWSKI
9/29/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912797GY7 3,800,000.00    Purchased Treasury maturing 3/28/2024 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active SPLONSKOWSKI
10/3/2023 Bank of North Dakota T Bill 912797GY7 2,324,000.00    Purchased Treasury with Reserve fund maturing 3/28/2024 Purchase investment in a timely manner when cash became available Invested a portion of available cash Active SPLONSKOWSKI

RETURN ON INVESTMENT 

To give context to our return on investment, we benchmarked our annual returns against US Treasuries of comparable term purchased on the 
same day. For example, a six-month CD is benchmarked against a six-month Treasury; a twelve-month CD against a twelve-month Treasury, etc. 
Money markets or demand deposits are benchmarked against a one-month treasury. The rationale behind using the one-month benchmark for 
money markets or demand deposits is that an investor can achieve comparable liquidity to a demand deposit by investing, on a rolling basis, in 
one-month Treasuries, such that the Treasuries mature on a daily, weekly, biweekly, etc. basis. (In fact, this is probably exactly what the public-
fund money markets are doing.) 

We summarize the return on investment below. For investments maturing during the year, we benchmark the investment performance against a 
US Treasury, of similar maturity, purchased on the same day the investment was purchased; however, we only benchmark interest earned 
during the year (1/1/2023 through 12/31/2023). We retrieved historical Treasury data from the US Treasury website for use in this report. 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

9 
 

Bank Average Balance Interest $ Earned Earned Interest Rate Benchmarked Interest Benchmark Interest Rate
Bank of North Dakota - Burleigh County 28,120,083.56$                                  1,028,334.81$                                      3.66% 1,264,499.56$                       4.50% a (236,164.75)$                                                  (0.84)%
Bank of the West 962,824.35                                          18.80                                                       0.0020% 10,559.42                               4.48% (10,540.62)                                                      (4.48)%
BNC National Bank 3,178,344.78                                      122,128.47                                            3.8425% 156,680.93                             4.93% (34,552.46)                                                      (1.09)%
Bravera Bank 2,124,727.49                                      96,548.12                                               4.54% 109,728.38                             5.16% (13,180.26)                                                      (0.62)%
Choice Bank 6,611,017.22                                      267,684.66                                            4.05% 303,860.89                             4.60% (36,176.22)                                                      (0.55)%
First Interational Bank 30,655,097.92                                    1,247,903.47                                         4.07% 1,531,684.80                         5.00% (283,781.33)                                                    (0.93)%
Wells Fargo (Sweep) -  General Fund 14,046,068.21                                    683,718.63                                            4.87% 687,958.91                             4.90% (4,240.28)                                                         (0.03)%
Wells Fargo (Sweep) - "PEG" 3,000,000.00                                      16,819.47                                               0.56% 149,238.08                             4.97% (132,418.61)                                                    (4.41)%

Subtotal, Burleigh County 88,698,163.53                                    3,463,156.43                                         3.90% 4,214,210.96                         4.75% (751,054.53)                                                    (0.85)%

Bank of North Dakota - Morton County 4,571,057.97                                      151,344.94                                            3.31% 229,145.55                             5.01% a (77,800.61)                                                      (1.70)%

Grand Total, Burleigh & Morton 93,269,221.49$                                  3,614,501.37$                                      3.88% 4,443,356.51$                       4.76% (828,855.14)$                                                  (0.89)%

a Note: Morton County's benchmark exceeds Burleigh's because Morton on average 47% of their cash uninvested in BND's money market. We benchmarked money markets against 1-mo. Treasuries.
Given the inverted yield curve, this credited Morton's benchmark with the higher-yielding 1-month Treasury rates. 

Difference Over/(Under) Benchmark

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

10 
 

 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA – BURLEIGH 

Deposits at BND consist of sales tax revenues and interest earned on invested sales tax revenues. Investments consist of US Treasuries. Since we 
are benchmarking against Treasuries any investments at BND will immediately be at benchmark. The only way in which BND could fail to meet 
benchmarks is for funds to remain uninvested. Uninvested funds earned an interest rate of .56% (56/100ths of one percent) during the period. In 
benchmarking BND, we focused on days funds were not invested. We benchmarked uninvested funds at the one-month Treasury rate. At the 
beginning of the period, the County had $18,547,917 in uninvested funds at BND. At the end of the period, the County had $3,379,637 in 
uninvested funds. For the period, the County earned $236,165 under the benchmark of a one-month Treasury with no days uninvested. 

Morton County started the period with $2,767,835 in uninvested funds and ended the period with $1,673,084 in uninvested funds. For the 
period, Morton County earned $77,801 under the benchmark of a one-month Treasury with no days uninvested. 

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

11 
 

Date Transaction Amount Invested Uninvested Cash Interest @ BND Days Not Invested  Interest Earned 
(Actual) 

 Interest @ 
Benchmark- 1M 

Treasury 

 Interest Earned @ 
Benchmark (Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

12/31/2022 Beginning Balance -$                            4,150,000.00$  18,547,916.83$                0.38% 24 4,634.44$            4.03% 49,149.44$                        (44,515.00)$                        
1/24/2023 Sales Tax 877,964.60               -                       19,425,881.43                   0.38% 7 1,415.69               4.57% 17,025.59                          (15,609.90)                          
1/31/2023 Month End Balance -                              4,150,000.00    19,430,130.27                   0.41% 3 654.77                  4.53% 7,234.40                            (6,579.63)                            

2/3/2023 Purchase T-Bills 15,628,127.52         15,628,127.52  3,802,002.75                     0.41% 3 128.12                  4.56% 1,424.97                            (1,296.85)                            
2/6/2023 Purchase T-Bills 1,172,764.29           1,172,764.29    2,629,238.46                     0.41% 16 472.54                  4.57% 5,267.12                            (4,794.58)                            

2/22/2023 Sales Tax 1,106,193.47           -                       3,735,431.93                     0.41% 6 251.76                  4.57% 2,806.18                            (2,554.42)                            
2/28/2023 Maturity of Note 1,826,000.00           (1,826,000.00)  5,561,431.93                     
2/28/2023 Month End Balance -                              19,124,891.81  5,578,768.49                     0.53% 6 486.04                  4.60% 4,218.47                            (3,732.43)                            

3/6/2023 Purchase T-Bills 1,825,792.50           20,950,684.31  3,752,975.99                     0.53% 15 817.43                  4.68% 7,218.05                            (6,400.62)                            
3/21/2023 Sales Tax 778,510.89               -                       4,531,486.88                     0.53% 10 658.00                  3.99% 4,953.60                            (4,295.60)                            
3/31/2023 Maturity of Note 2,324,000.00           18,626,684.31  6,874,861.67                     0.54% 3 305.13                  4.69% 2,650.12                            (2,344.99)                            

4/3/2023 Purchase T-Bills 3,248,482.54           21,875,166.85  3,626,379.13                     0.54% 21 1,126.66               4.65% 9,701.81                            (8,575.15)                            
4/24/2023 Sales Tax 739,956.36               -                       4,366,335.49                     0.54% 6 387.59                  3.47% 2,490.61                            (2,103.02)                            
4/30/2023 Month End Balance -                              21,875,166.85  4,368,150.77                     0.61% 1 73.00                     4.31% 515.80                                (442.80)                                

5/1/2023 Bond Payment (379,671.05)             -                       3,988,479.72                     0.61% 18 1,199.82               4.41% 8,674.12                            (7,474.30)                            
5/19/2023 Sales Tax 688,155.85               -                       4,676,635.57                     0.61% 12 937.89                  5.52% 8,487.13                            (7,549.24)                            
5/31/2023 Month End Balance -                              21,875,166.85  4,678,815.11                     0.59% 22 1,663.86               5.18% 14,608.16                          (12,944.30)                          
6/22/2023 Sales Tax 1,066,011.06           -                       5,744,826.17                     0.59% 8 742.89                  5.12% 6,446.80                            (5,703.91)                            
6/30/2023 Month End Balance -                              21,875,166.85  5,747,291.24                     0.61% 24 2,305.21               5.18% 19,575.43                          (17,270.22)                          
7/24/2023 Sales Tax 987,741.14               -                       6,735,032.38                     0.61% 7 787.91                  5.37% 6,936.16                            (6,148.25)                            
7/31/2023 Interest Payment 187,296.06               -                       6,922,328.44                     
7/31/2023 Month End Balance -                              21,875,166.85  6,922,328.44                     0.61% 3 347.06                  5.38% 3,061.00                            (2,713.94)                            

8/3/2023 Maturity of Note 4,000,000.00           17,966,597.52  10,922,328.44                   
8/3/2023 Purchase T-Bills 7,000,000.00           24,966,597.52  3,922,328.44                     0.61% 18 1,179.92               5.39% 10,425.87                          (9,245.95)                            

8/21/2023 Sales Tax 1,095,716.25           -                       5,018,044.69                     0.61% 10 838.63                  5.39% 7,410.21                            (6,571.58)                            
8/31/2023 Purchase T-Bills 1,795,478.88           26,762,076.41  3,222,565.81                     
8/31/2023 Maturity of Note 1,870,820.00           24,936,283.91  5,093,385.81                     
8/31/2023 Month End Balance -                              24,936,283.91  5,095,620.45                     0.59% 22 1,812.09               5.39% 16,554.48                          (14,742.39)                          
9/22/2023 Sales Tax 1,021,130.79           -                       6,116,751.24                     0.59% 6 593.24                  5.40% 5,429.66                            (4,836.42)                            
9/28/2023 Maturity of Notes 3,324,000.00           21,687,801.36  9,440,751.24                     0.59% 1 152.60                  5.40% 1,396.71                            (1,244.11)                            
9/29/2023 Purchase T-Bills 3,800,000.00           25,487,801.36  5,640,751.24                     0.59% 1 91.18                     5.40% 834.52                                (743.34)                                
9/30/2023 Month End Balance -                              25,487,801.36  5,643,333.52                     0.61% 3 282.94                  5.40% 2,504.71                            (2,221.77)                            
10/3/2023 Purchase T-Bills 2,324,000.00           27,811,801.36  3,319,333.52                     0.61% 17 943.05                  5.40% 8,348.35                            (7,405.30)                            

10/20/2023 Sales Tax 716,756.35               -                       4,036,089.87                     0.61% 11 741.98                  5.42% 6,592.65                            (5,850.67)                            
10/31/2023 Month End Balance -                              27,811,801.36  4,037,997.55                     0.59% 1 65.27                     5.40% 597.40                                (532.13)                                

11/1/2023 Bond Payment (2,961,138.50)          -                       1,076,859.05                     0.59% 21 365.54                  5.40% 3,345.64                            (2,980.10)                            
11/22/2023 Sales Tax 1,366,765.51           -                       5,404,763.06                     0.59% 8 698.92                  5.39% 6,385.02                            (5,686.10)                            
11/30/2023 Month End Balance -                              27,811,801.36  2,422,335.76                     0.61% 21 850.14                  5.40% 7,525.83                            (6,675.69)                            
12/21/2023 Sales Tax 950,487.81               -                       3,372,823.57                     0.61% 10 563.68                  5.35% 4,943.73                            (4,380.05)                            
12/31/2023 Month End Balance -                              27,811,801.36  3,379,636.55                     

(236,164.75)$                     

 

 

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

12 
 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA – MORTON 
Date Transaction Amount Invested Uninvested Cash Interest @ BND Days Not 

Invested
 Interest Earned 

(Actual) 
 Interest @ Benchmark- 

1M Treasury 
 Interest Earned @ 

Benchmark (Estimate) 
 Over/(Under) 

Benchmark 
12/31/2022 Beginning Balance -$                   850,000.00$     2,767,834.67$               0.38% 24 691.58$               4.03% 7,334.38$                               (6,642.80)$           

1/24/2023 Sales Tax 159,764.28       -                      2,927,598.95                 0.38% 7 213.35                 4.07% 2,285.13                                 (2,071.78)              
1/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      850,000.00       2,930,186.20                 0.41% 22 724.12                 4.19% 7,400.13                                 (6,676.01)              
2/22/2023 Sales Tax 194,341.24       -                      3,124,527.44                 0.41% 6 210.58                 4.21% 2,162.34                                 (1,951.76)              
2/28/2023 Maturity of Note 374,000.00       476,000.00       3,498,527.44                 
2/28/2023 Month End Balance -                      476,000.00       3,485,014.93                 0.53% 6 303.63                 4.27% 2,446.19                                 (2,142.56)              

3/6/2023 Purchase T-Bills 373,957.50       849,957.50       3,111,057.43                 0.53% 15 677.61                 4.27% 5,459.27                                 (4,781.66)              
3/21/2023 Sales Tax 126,518.06       -                      3,237,575.49                 0.53% 10 470.11                 4.45% 3,947.18                                 (3,477.07)              
3/31/2023 Maturity of Note 476,000.00       373,957.50       3,713,575.49                 0.53%
3/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      373,957.50       3,718,571.58                 0.53% 3 161.99                 4.48% 1,369.25                                 (1,207.26)              

4/3/2023 Purchase T-Bills 2,419,748.13   2,793,705.63    1,298,823.45                 0.54% 21 403.52                 4.47% 3,340.29                                 (2,936.77)              
4/24/2023 Sales Tax 139,878.38       -                      1,438,701.83                 0.54% 6 127.71                 4.57% 1,080.80                                 (953.09)                 
4/30/2023 Month End Balance -                      2,793,705.63    1,439,376.64                 0.61% 1 24.06                    4.56% 179.82                                     (155.76)                 

5/1/2023 Bond Payment (77,763.95)       -                      1,361,612.69                 0.61% 18 409.60                 4.57% 3,068.66                                 (2,659.06)              
5/19/2023 Sales Tax 132,196.41       -                      1,493,809.10                 0.61% 12 299.58                 4.57% 2,244.40                                 (1,944.82)              
5/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      2,793,705.63    1,494,531.21                 0.59% 22 531.48                 4.55% 4,098.70                                 (3,567.22)              
6/22/2023 Sales Tax 185,829.63       -                      1,680,360.84                 0.59% 8 217.30                 4.57% 1,683.12                                 (1,465.82)              
6/30/2023 Month End Balance -                      2,793,705.63    1,681,125.36                 0.61% 24 674.29                 4.56% 5,040.61                                 (4,366.32)              
7/24/2023 Sales Tax 175,329.29       -                      1,856,454.65                 0.61% 7 217.18                 4.55% 1,619.95                                 (1,402.77)              
7/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      2,793,705.63    1,857,334.39                 0.61% 21 651.85                 4.53% 4,840.77                                 (4,188.92)              
8/21/2023 Sales Tax 218,445.94       -                      2,075,780.33                 0.61% 10 346.91                 4.54% 2,581.93                                 (2,235.02)              
8/31/2023 Maturity of Note 383,180.00       2,419,748.13    2,458,960.33                 
8/31/2023 Purchase T-Bills 367,748.69       2,787,496.81    2,091,211.64                 
8/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      2,787,496.81    2,092,197.87                 0.59% 22 744.02                 4.57% 5,763.00                                 (5,018.98)              
9/22/2023 Sales Tax 200,682.44       -                      2,292,880.31                 0.59% 6 222.38                 4.57% 1,722.49                                 (1,500.11)              
9/28/2023 Maturity of Notes 2,430,562.30   367,748.69       4,723,442.61                 0.59% 1 76.35                    4.59% 593.99                                     (517.64)                 
9/29/2023 Purchase T-Bills 2,600,000.00   2,967,748.69    2,123,442.61                 0.59% 1 34.32                    4.61% 268.19                                     (233.87)                 
9/30/2023 Month End Balance -                      2,967,748.69    2,169,948.70                 0.61% 3 108.79                 4.61% 822.20                                     (713.41)                 
10/3/2023 Purchase T-Bills 476,000.00       3,443,748.69    1,693,948.70                 0.61% 17 481.27                 4.61% 3,637.12                                 (3,155.85)              

10/20/2023 Sales Tax 159,377.07       -                      1,853,325.77                 0.61% 11 340.71                 4.58% 2,558.10                                 (2,217.39)              
10/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      3,443,748.69    1,854,232.77                 0.59% 1 29.97                    4.59% 233.18                                     (203.21)                 

11/1/2023 Bond Payment (609,296.96)     -                      1,244,935.81                 0.59% 21 422.60                 4.61% 3,301.98                                 (2,879.38)              
11/22/2023 Sales Tax 235,014.56       -                      1,479,950.37                 0.59% 8 191.38                 4.59% 1,488.87                                 (1,297.49)              
11/30/2023 Month End Balance 3,443,748.69    1,495,820.00                 0.61% 21 524.97                 4.58% 3,941.59                                 (3,416.62)              
12/21/2023 Sales Tax 181,875.96       -                      1,677,695.96                 0.61% 10 280.38                 4.57% 2,100.57                                 (1,820.19)              
12/31/2023 Month End Balance -                      3,443,748.69    1,673,084.38                 

(77,800.61)$         

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

13 
 

WELLS FARGO SWEEP ACCOUNT 

The Wells Fargo Sweep account, also known as the Zero Balance Account (“ZBA”), is designed to allow for the maximum investment of funds by 
keeping the account balance at zero overnight. The account goes negative through the day as checks are drawn, and at the close of business, 
Wells Fargo “sweeps” cash from the money market into the ZBA to cover the checks drawn throughout the day and bring the balance of the 
account up to zero. This type of account is common and is employed by many other entities including the North Dakota Treasurer’s Office. 

Burleigh County failed to take full advantage of the account. Burleigh County set the account balance at $3,000,000 (this is known as the “PEG” 
amount) instead of zero as the account name would imply. Consequently, $3,000,000 remained effectively uninvested for the entire year. This 
uninvested amount is allowed to earn enough interest to pay the account fees but no more. For the period, the County earned $132,419 under 
the benchmark of one-month Treasuries. 

Date  Uninvested 
"PEG" Amount 

Days Not 
Invested

Interest Earned 
(Actual)

Interest @ 
Benchmark - 1M 

Treasury

 Interest Earned @ 
Benchmark 
(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

1/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,864.39$                  4.03% 10,268.22$              (8,403.83)$            
2/1/2023 3,000,000.00          28 1,987.87                    4.54% 10,448.22                 (8,460.35)              
3/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,420.76                    4.60% 11,720.55                 (10,299.79)            
4/1/2023 3,000,000.00          30 1,230.14                    4.69% 11,564.38                 (10,334.24)            
5/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,214.79                    4.41% 11,236.44                 (10,021.65)            
6/1/2023 3,000,000.00          30 1,312.38                    5.25% 12,945.21                 (11,632.83)            
7/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,170.12                    5.18% 13,198.36                 (12,028.24)            
8/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,206.70                    5.39% 13,733.42                 (12,526.72)            
9/1/2023 3,000,000.00          30 1,203.37                    5.39% 13,290.41                 (12,087.04)            

10/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,220.95                    5.40% 13,758.90                 (12,537.95)            
11/1/2023 3,000,000.00          30 1,248.01                    5.40% 13,315.07                 (12,067.06)            
12/1/2023 3,000,000.00          31 1,739.99                    5.40% 13,758.90                 (12,018.91)            

(132,418.61)$       

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

14 
 

The County uses the Sweep account as one of its primary investment vehicles. Substantially all property taxes are receipted into Wells Fargo by 
February 15th. The funds are deposited into the Sweep account until utilized. The Sweep account underperformed the benchmark of a one-
month Treasury throughout the year. In total, the Sweep account underperformed the benchmark by $4,240. 

Date Account # Description  Average 
Balance 

 Invested  Days Interest 
Earned 

 Interest 
% (APY) 

 Interest 
Earned 

 Interest @ Benchmark - 
1M Treasury 

 Interest Earned @ 
Benchmark 
(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) Benchmark

1/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 20,696,472.81$  17,696,472.81$  31 4.10% 61,602.82        4.0300% 60,570.42$                   1,032.40$                                   
2/28/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 26,819,673.88    23,819,673.88    28 4.34% 79,219.69        4.5400% 82,957.72                      (3,738.03)                                   
3/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 24,178,719.97    21,178,719.97    31 4.65% 83,561.21        4.6000% 82,742.07                      819.14                                         
4/30/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 21,668,013.01    18,668,013.01    30 4.66% 71,577.15        4.6900% 71,961.35                      (384.20)                                       
5/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 20,932,636.03    17,932,636.03    31 4.95% 75,362.74        4.4100% 67,166.32                      8,196.42                                     
6/30/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 21,581,133.41    18,581,133.41    30 4.96% 75,732.98        5.2500% 80,178.86                      (4,445.88)                                   
7/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 20,953,133.40    17,953,133.40    31 5.16% 78,701.86        5.1800% 78,983.95                      (282.09)                                       
8/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 16,924,419.14    13,924,419.14    31 5.20% 61,520.58        5.3900% 63,743.32                      (2,222.74)                                   
9/30/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 12,268,856.09    9,268,856.09      30 5.21% 39,693.08        5.3900% 41,062.30                      (1,369.22)                                   

10/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 8,555,265.68      5,555,265.68      31 5.23% 24,690.19        5.4000% 25,478.12                      (787.93)                                       
11/30/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 5,918,791.35      2,918,791.35      30 5.23% 12,546.80        5.4000% 12,954.64                      (407.84)                                       
12/31/2023 Sweep Burleigh Funds 7,395,663.62      4,395,663.62      31 5.23% 19,509.53        5.4000% 20,159.84                      (650.31)                                       

(4,240.28)$                                 

 

FIRST INTERNATIONAL BANK – CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

The County purchased $22,500,000 of CDs with First International Bank on February 16th using cash invested in the First International money 
market, which earned 1.22% at the time the CDs were purchased. On that day, our Wells Fargo Sweep account yielded more than the CDs 
purchased (see Appendix A.3.). Treasuries yielded a substantially higher interest rate than these CDs, and by February 28th, only twelve days 
later, our First International money market yielded more than the CDs purchased on February 16th. It’s unclear if the County followed its 
investment policy in receiving bids for this transaction, despite the enormous size of the transaction at $22.5m.  

When these CDs matured, the County either deposited the proceeds into money markets or purchased additional CDs at First International. 

The purchase of $22.5m in CDs on February 16th underperformed the benchmark of similar Treasuries by $66,000 during 2023. The additional 
CDs purchased August 17th underperformed the benchmark of similar Treasuries by $7,000. In total, the First International CDs underperformed 
the benchmark by $73,000. 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

15 
 

Purchase Date Maturity Date Term Term (Days) Bank Account Type  Opening Balance Interest Rate  Interest 
Earned 2023 

 Interest @ 
Benchmark - 
Similar Term 

Treasury 

 Interest Earned 
@ Benchmark 

(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

2/16/2023 3/16/2023 1 Month 28 First International CD 1,875,000.00$          4.03% 5,796.58$      4.61% 6,630.82$                (834.24)$             
2/16/2023 5/18/2023 3 Months 91 First International CD 7,500,000.00            4.08% 76,290.41      4.82% 90,127.40                (13,836.99)         
2/16/2023 5/18/2023 3 Months 91 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.08% 19,072.60      4.82% 22,531.85                (3,459.25)            
2/16/2023 8/17/2023 6 Months 182 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.13% 38,612.67      5.02% 46,933.56                (8,320.89)            
2/16/2023 2/16/2024 12 Months 318 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.18% 68,282.88      5.01% 81,841.44                (13,558.56)         
2/16/2023 3/16/2023 1 Month 28 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.03% 5,796.58        4.61% 6,630.82                  (834.24)               
2/16/2023 5/18/2023 3 Months 91 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.08% 19,072.60      4.82% 22,531.85                (3,459.25)            
2/16/2023 8/17/2023 6 Months 182 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.13% 38,612.67      5.02% 46,933.56                (8,320.89)            
2/16/2023 2/16/2024 12 Months 318 First International CD 1,875,000.00            4.18% 68,282.88      5.01% 81,841.44                (13,558.56)         
8/17/2023 2/15/2024 6 Months 136 First International CD 1,875,000.00            5.00% 34,931.51      5.50% 38,424.66                (3,493.15)            
8/17/2023 2/15/2024 6 Months 136 First International CD 1,875,000.00            5.00% 34,931.51      5.50% 38,424.66                (3,493.15)            

(73,169.17)$       

FIRST INTERNATIONAL BANK – MONEY MARKETS 

At the beginning of the year, the County held $30,000,000 at First International in money markets earning only .76%. Meanwhile, the Wells 
Fargo Sweep account – also a money market – was earning 4.04% (see Appendix A.1.). The rates at Wells Fargo rose gradually during 2022, 
topping 4% on December 15, 2022 (see Appendix A.2.). The County prints daily activity reports from Wells Fargo, so the higher rate was known 
to the County, yet the County maintained its accounts at the much lower yielding First International money market. 

On February 16th, forty-six days into the year, with its money market earning only 1.69% on average, the County purchased $22,500,000 in CDs 
with First International averaging 4.10%. For the first forty-six days of the year, the First International money market underperformed the 
benchmark of a one-month Treasury by $125,000.  

In May, when half these CDs matured, the County chose to deposit the proceeds plus interest of $11,362,747 into money markets earning 
4.67%, which was .96% less than Treasuries. On the same day, according to the County’s daily report, the Wells Fargo Sweep account was 
paying significantly more than First International’s money market at 4.94% (see Appendix A.4.), but the County chose to keep its cash in First 
International, choosing convenience over yield. This decision to deposit CD proceeds into money markets underperformed the benchmark of a 
one-month Treasury by over $9,000 a month while the rates held. In total, the First International money markets underperformed the 
benchmark of a one-month Treasury by $210,000 during 2023. 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

16 
 

Date Account Description  Amount  Account Balance  Invested  Days Interest 
Earned 

Interest % 
(APY)

 Interest Earned Interest @ 
Benchmark - 1M 

Treasury

 Interest Earned @ 
Benchmark 
(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

1/1/2023 County Reserves Opening Balance 14,753,327.08$    14,753,327.08$       14,753,327.08$  2.00                    0.76% 614.39                                 4.03% 3,257.86$                  (2,643.47)$                         
1/3/2023 County Reserves Deposit 148.97                    14,753,476.05          14,753,476.05    28.00                 0.76% 8,601.48                             4.03% 45,610.47                  (37,008.99)                         

1/31/2023 County Reserves Interest Deposit 9,501.26                 14,762,977.31          14,762,977.31    1.00                    0.76% 307.39                                 4.53% 1,832.23                    (1,524.84)                           
2/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 219.18                    14,763,196.49          14,763,196.49    15.00                 1.22% 7,401.82                             4.54% 27,544.48                  (20,142.66)                         

2/16/2023 County Reserves Purchase CD (14,763,196.49)    -                               -                         12.00                 1.22% -                                        4.61% -                              -                                       
2/28/2023 County Reserves Interest Deposit 7,360.49                 7,360.49                    7,360.49               1.00                    1.22% 0.25                                      4.60% 0.93                            (0.68)                                   

3/1/2023 County Reserves Opening Balance 7,360.49                    7,360.49               1.00                    4.37% 0.88                                      4.60% 0.93                            (0.05)                                   
3/2/2023 County Reserves Withdrawal (7,360.49)               -                               -                         15.00                 4.37% -                                        4.68% -                              -                                       

3/17/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,651,363.75        1,651,363.75            1,651,363.75      14.00                 4.37% 2,767.96                             4.26% 2,698.28                    69.68                                   
3/31/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 2,910.44                 1,654,274.19            1,654,274.19      1.00                    4.37% 198.06                                 4.69% 212.56                        (14.50)                                 

4/1/2023 County Reserves Opening Balance 1,654,274.19            1,654,274.19      2.00                    4.46% 404.28                                 4.65% 421.50                        (17.22)                                 
4/3/2023 County Reserves Deposit 505.87                    1,654,780.06            1,654,780.06      25.00                 4.46% 5,055.01                             4.65% 5,270.36                    (215.35)                               

4/28/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 5,947.02                 1,660,727.08            1,660,727.08      2.00                    4.46% 405.85                                 4.31% 392.20                        13.65                                   
4/30/2023 County Reserves Ending Balance 1,660,727.08            1,660,727.08      1.00                    4.46% 202.93                                 4.31% 196.10                        6.83                                     

5/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 846.16                    1,661,573.24            1,661,573.24      22.00                 4.67% 4,676.99                             4.41% 4,416.60                    260.39                                
5/23/2023 County Reserves Deposit 9,468,955.76        11,130,529.00          11,130,529.00    8.00                    4.67% 11,392.78                           5.63% 13,734.77                  (2,341.99)                           
5/31/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 17,134.00              11,147,663.00          11,147,663.00    1.00                    4.67% 1,426.29                             5.18% 1,582.05                    (155.76)                               

6/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,030.63                 11,148,693.63          11,148,693.63    29.00                 4.92% 43,580.70                           5.25% 46,503.80                  (2,923.10)                           
6/30/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 44,062.78              11,192,756.41          11,192,756.41    1.00                    4.92% 1,508.72                             5.18% 1,588.45                    (79.73)                                 

7/1/2023 County Reserves Opening Balance -                           11,192,756.41          11,192,756.41    2.00                    4.93% 3,023.58                             5.18% 3,176.90                    (153.32)                               
7/3/2023 County Reserves Deposit 986.20                    11,193,742.61          11,193,742.61    28.00                 4.93% 42,333.81                           5.20% 44,652.30                  (2,318.49)                           

7/31/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 45,871.22              11,239,613.83          11,239,613.83    1.00                    4.93% 1,518.12                             5.38% 1,656.69                    (138.57)                               
8/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,022.70                 11,240,636.53          11,240,636.53    30.00                 4.98% 46,009.62                           5.39% 49,797.56                  (3,787.94)                           

8/31/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 46,478.73              11,287,115.26          11,287,115.26    1.00                    4.98% 1,540.00                             5.39% 1,666.78                    (126.78)                               
9/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,031.66                 11,288,146.92          11,288,146.92    28.00                 5.19% 44,942.29                           5.39% 46,674.17                  (1,731.88)                           

9/29/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 47,052.48              11,335,199.40          11,335,199.40    1.00                    5.19% 1,611.77                             5.40% 1,676.99                    (65.22)                                 
9/30/2023 County Reserves Ending Balance -                           11,335,199.40          11,335,199.40    1.00                    5.19% 1,611.77                             5.40% 1,676.99                    (65.22)                                 
10/1/2023 County Reserves Opening Balance -                           11,335,199.40          11,335,199.40    1.00                    5.20% 1,614.88                             5.40% 1,676.99                    (62.11)                                 
10/2/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,005.33                 11,336,204.73          11,336,204.73    29.00                 5.20% 46,835.61                           5.40% 48,636.98                  (1,801.37)                           

10/31/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 48,883.78              11,385,088.51          11,385,088.51    1.00                    5.20% 1,621.99                             5.40% 1,684.37                    (62.38)                                 
11/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,110.52                 11,386,199.03          11,386,199.03    29.00                 5.20% 47,042.16                           5.40% 48,851.47                  (1,809.31)                           

11/30/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 47,555.16              11,433,754.19          11,433,754.19    1.00                    5.20% 1,628.92                             5.40% 1,691.57                    (62.65)                                 
12/1/2023 County Reserves Deposit 1,042.05                 11,434,796.24          11,434,796.24    28.00                 5.21% 45,701.59                           5.40% 47,368.25                  (1,666.66)                           

12/29/2023 County Reserves Interest Capitalization 49,438.70              11,484,234.94          11,484,234.94    2.00                    5.21% 3,278.51                             5.44% 3,423.25                    (144.74)                               
12/31/2023 County Reserves Ending Balance -                           11,484,234.94          11,484,234.94    1.00                    5.21% 1,639.26                             5.44% 1,711.62                    (72.36)                                 

(80,786.79)$                      

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

17 
 

Month Days Account Average Balance Interest % (APY) Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest Over/(Under) Perform
January 31 County Reserves 250,000.00$            1.00% 219.18$                   4.41% 936.05$                            (716.87)$                               
February 28 County Reserves 131,598.24               1.16% 116.99                     4.59% 463.37                              (346.38)                                 
March 31 County Reserves 139,035.79               4.37% 505.87                     4.42% 521.53                              (15.66)                                    
April 30 County Reserves 250,000.00               4.50% 846.16                     4.10% 842.05                              4.11                                        
May 31 County Reserves 250,000.00               4.66% 1,030.63                 5.42% 1,150.15                          (119.52)                                 
June 30 County Reserves 250,000.00               4.91% 986.20                     5.14% 1,056.46                          (70.26)                                    
July 31 County Reserves 250,000.00               4.92% 1,022.70                 5.31% 1,128.10                          (105.40)                                 
August 31 County Reserves 250,000.00               4.97% 1,031.66                 5.39% 1,143.62                          (111.96)                                 
September 30 County Reserves 250,000.00               5.18% 1,005.33                 5.40% 1,108.77                          (103.44)                                 
October 31 County Reserves 250,000.00               5.19% 1,110.52                 5.41% 1,149.61                          (39.09)                                    
November 30 County Reserves 250,000.00               5.19% 1,042.05                 5.40% 1,109.78                          (67.73)                                    
December 31 County Reserves 250,000.00               5.08% 1,009.06                 5.38% 1,143.28                          (134.22)                                 

(1,826.42)$                           

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

18 
 

Date Account Description  Amount  Account Balance  Invested 
 Days Interest 

Earned 
Interest % 

(APY)
 Interest Earned 

Interest @ 
Benchmark - 1M 

Treasury

 Interest Earned @ 
Benchmark 
(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

1/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance 15,506,176.25$    15,506,176.25$       15,506,176.25$  30.00                 0.76% 9,686.05$                           4.03% 51,361.55$               (41,675.50)$                      
1/31/2023 ARPA Funds Deposit 9,985.93                 15,516,162.18          15,516,162.18    1.00                    0.76% 323.08                                 4.53% 1,925.70                    (1,602.62)                           

2/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           15,516,162.18          15,516,162.18    15.00                 2.15% 13,709.49                           4.54% 28,949.33                  (15,239.84)                         
2/16/2023 ARPA Funds Withdrawal (7,500,000.00)       8,016,162.18            8,016,162.18      12.00                 2.15% 5,666.22                             4.61% 12,149.43                  (6,483.21)                           
2/28/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 19,643.61              8,035,805.79            8,035,805.79      1.00                    2.15% 473.34                                 4.60% 1,012.73                    (539.39)                               

3/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           8,035,805.79            8,035,805.79      5.00                    4.38% 4,821.48                             4.60% 5,063.66                    (242.18)                               
3/6/2023 ARPA Funds Withdrawal (651,074.74)          7,384,731.05            7,384,731.05      11.00                 4.38% 9,747.84                             4.68% 10,415.51                  (667.67)                               

3/17/2023 ARPA Funds Deposit 1,880,689.78        9,265,420.83            9,265,420.83      3.00                    4.38% 3,335.55                             4.26% 3,244.17                    91.38                                   
3/20/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 159.49                    9,265,580.32            9,265,580.32      11.00                 4.38% 12,230.57                           4.27% 11,923.41                  307.16                                
3/31/2023 ARPA Funds Deposit 858.89                    9,266,439.21            9,266,439.21      -                      4.38% -                                        4.69% -                              -                                       
3/31/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 30,453.05              9,296,892.26            9,296,892.26      1.00                    4.38% 1,115.63                             4.69% 1,194.59                    (78.96)                                 

4/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           9,296,892.26            9,296,892.26      27.00                 4.46% 30,672.10                           4.65% 31,978.76                  (1,306.66)                           
4/28/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 33,412.28              9,330,304.54            9,330,304.54      2.00                    4.46% 2,280.17                             4.31% 2,203.49                    76.68                                   
4/30/2023 ARPA Funds Ending Balance -                           9,330,304.54            9,330,304.54      1.00                    4.46% 1,140.09                             4.31% 1,101.74                    38.35                                   

5/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           9,330,304.54            9,330,304.54      10.00                 4.67% 11,937.68                           4.41% 11,273.05                  664.63                                
5/11/2023 ARPA Funds Withdrawal (534,895.08)          8,795,409.46            8,795,409.46      12.00                 4.67% 13,503.97                           5.71% 16,511.27                  (3,007.30)                           
5/23/2023 ARPA Funds Deposit 1,893,791.15        10,689,200.61          10,689,200.61    8.00                    4.67% 10,941.06                           5.63% 13,190.18                  (2,249.12)                           
5/31/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 37,003.35              10,726,203.96          10,726,203.96    1.00                    4.67% 1,372.37                             5.18% 1,522.24                    (149.87)                               

6/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,726,203.96          10,726,203.96    29.00                 4.92% 41,929.17                           5.25% 44,741.49                  (2,812.32)                           
6/30/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 42,392.94              10,768,596.90          10,768,596.90    1.00                    4.92% 1,451.55                             5.18% 1,528.26                    (76.71)                                 

7/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,768,596.90          10,768,596.90    30.00                 4.93% 43,634.94                           5.18% 45,847.67                  (2,212.73)                           
7/31/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 44,129.03              10,812,725.93          10,812,725.93    1.00                    4.93% 1,460.46                             5.38% 1,593.77                    (133.31)                               

8/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,812,725.93          10,812,725.93    6.00                    4.98% 8,851.62                             5.39% 9,580.37                    (728.75)                               
8/7/2023 ARPA Funds Withdrawal (641,485.65)          10,171,240.28          10,171,240.28    24.00                 4.98% 33,305.94                           5.38% 35,981.11                  (2,675.17)                           

8/31/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 42,571.08              10,213,811.36          10,213,811.36    1.00                    4.98% 1,393.56                             5.39% 1,508.29                    (114.73)                               
9/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,213,811.36          10,213,811.36    28.00                 5.19% 40,664.96                           5.39% 42,232.01                  (1,567.05)                           

9/29/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 42,574.16              10,256,385.52          10,256,385.52    1.00                    5.19% 1,458.37                             5.40% 1,517.38                    (59.01)                                 
9/30/2023 ARPA Funds Ending Balance -                           10,256,385.52          10,256,385.52    1.00                    5.19% 1,458.37                             5.40% 1,517.38                    (59.01)                                 
10/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,256,385.52          10,256,385.52    26.00                 5.20% 37,990.78                           5.40% 39,451.96                  (1,461.18)                           

10/27/2023 ARPA Funds Deposit 38,247.52              10,294,633.04          10,294,633.04    3.00                    5.20% 4,399.90                             5.41% 4,577.59                    (177.69)                               
10/30/2023 ARPA Funds Withdrawal (318,523.46)          9,976,109.58            9,976,109.58      1.00                    5.20% 1,421.25                             5.40% 1,475.92                    (54.67)                                 
10/31/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 44,165.45              10,020,275.03          10,020,275.03    1.00                    5.20% 1,427.55                             5.40% 1,482.45                    (54.90)                                 

11/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,020,275.03          10,020,275.03    29.00                 5.20% 41,398.83                           5.40% 42,991.10                  (1,592.27)                           
11/30/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 41,850.26              10,062,125.29          10,062,125.29    1.00                    5.20% 1,433.51                             5.40% 1,488.64                    (55.13)                                 

12/1/2023 ARPA Funds Opening Balance -                           10,062,125.29          10,062,125.29    28.00                 5.21% 40,215.42                           5.40% 41,682.01                  (1,466.59)                           
12/29/2023 ARPA Funds Interest Capitalization 43,503.72              10,105,629.01          10,105,629.01    2.00                    5.21% 2,884.95                             5.44% 3,012.31                    (127.36)                               
12/31/2023 ARPA Funds Ending Balance -                           10,105,629.01          10,105,629.01    1.00                    5.21% 1,442.47                             5.44% 1,506.15                    (63.68)                                 

(87,556.38)$                      

 

 

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

19 
 

Month Days Account Average Balance Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest
Over/(Under) 

Benchmark
January 31 Health Insurance 1,081,630.50$     526.74$               4.41% 4,049.85$                     (3,523.11)$                            
February 28 Health Insurance 1,105,301.05       726.74                  4.59% 3,891.87                       (3,165.13)                              
March 31 Health Insurance 1,086,617.76       806.42                  4.42% 4,075.92                       (3,269.50)                              
April 30 Health Insurance 1,129,829.12       915.38                  4.10% 3,805.51                       (2,890.13)                              
May 31 Health Insurance 1,096,940.06       869.18                  5.42% 5,046.57                       (4,177.39)                              
June 30 Health Insurance 979,296.95           603.78                  5.14% 4,138.34                       (3,534.56)                              
July 31 Health Insurance 787,375.83           361.86                  5.31% 3,552.96                       (3,191.10)                              
August 31 Health Insurance 795,691.94           337.90                  5.39% 3,639.88                       (3,301.98)                              
September 30 Health Insurance 830,914.17           409.99                  5.40% 3,685.16                       (3,275.17)                              
October 31 Health Insurance 879,613.87           387.27                  5.41% 4,044.85                       (3,657.58)                              
November 30 Health Insurance 799,720.75           336.96                  5.40% 3,550.07                       (3,213.11)                              
December 31 Health Insurance 781,926.61           332.06                  5.38% 3,575.86                       (3,243.80)                              

(40,442.56)$                          

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

20 
 

BNC NATIONAL BANK – CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

The County purchased a handful of CDs with BNC National Bank (“BNC”) during 2023. Treasuries yielded a substantially higher interest rate when 
purchased on the same dates as these CDs. During the year, these CDs underperformed the benchmark of similar Treasuries by $12,332. 

Purchase Date Maturity Date Term Term (Days) Bank Account Type  Opening Balance Interest Rate  Interest 
Earned 2023 

 Interest @ 
Benchmark - Similar 

Term Treasury 

 Interest Earned @ 
Benchmark 
(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

3/30/2023 6/29/2023 3 Months 91 BNC CD 1,147,018.68$          4.15% 11,867.72$    4.94% 14,126.87$               (2,259.16)$          
3/30/2023 9/28/2023 6 Months 182 BNC CD 1,147,018.68            4.30% 24,593.34      4.89% 27,967.77                  (3,374.43)            
3/30/2023 3/28/2024 1 Year 276 BNC CD 1,147,018.68            4.50% 39,030.06      4.64% 40,244.33                  (1,214.27)            
6/29/2023 6/27/2024 1 Year 185 BNC CD 1,147,018.68            4.70% 27,324.18      5.43% 31,568.15                  (4,243.97)            
9/28/2023 9/26/2024 1 Year 94 BNC CD 1,147,018.68            5.06% 14,947.07      5.48% 16,187.73                  (1,240.67)            

(12,332.49)$        

BNC NATIONAL BANK – MONEY MARKETS 

The County maintains a small amount of its investments in the BNC money market. The money market consistently underperformed one-month 
Treasuries purchased at any point during the year. During the year, this investment underperformed the benchmark of a one-month Treasury by 
$1,170.



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

21 
 

Month Days Interest % (APY) Average Balance Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest Over/(Under) Perform
January 31 -                              -$                           -$                         4.41% -$                                  -$                                       
February 28 -                              -                              -                            4.59% -                                     -                                          
March 31 -                              -                              -                            4.42% -                                     -                                          
April 30 -                              -                              -                            4.10% -                                     -                                          
May 31 -                              -                              -                            5.42% -                                     -                                          
June 30 -                              -                              -                            5.14% -                                     -                                          
July 31 0.50% 47,468.75                 20.16                       5.31% 214.20                              (194.04)                                 
August 31 0.50% 47,488.91                 20.16                       5.39% 217.24                              (197.08)                                 
September 30 0.50% 47,508.75                 19.52                       5.40% 210.70                              (191.18)                                 
October 31 0.50% 47,528.60                 20.18                       5.41% 218.56                              (198.38)                                 
November 30 0.50% 47,558.22                 19.53                       5.40% 211.12                              (191.59)                                 
December 31 0.50% 47,583.32                 20.20                       5.38% 217.61                              (197.41)                                 

(1,169.67)$                           

BNC – CASH SERVICE ACCOUNT 

The County maintained a significant amount of cash in a BNC Cash Service account during the first quarter of the year earning a fraction of the 
benchmark rate of a one-month Treasury. In total, this account underperformed the benchmark of a one-month Treasury by $21,050. 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

22 
 

Month Days Average Balance Interest % (APY) Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest Over/(Under) Perform
January 31 2,276,341.66$         0.75% 1,450.38$               4.41% 8,523.09$                        (7,072.71)$                           
February 28 2,277,792.06           0.75% 1,310.79                 4.59% 8,020.32                          (6,709.53)                              
March 31 2,318,037.36           0.75% 1,476.92                 4.42% 8,695.00                          (7,218.08)                              
April 30 1,476.95                   0.75% 0.85                          4.10% 4.97                                   (4.12)                                      
May 31 1,477.80                   0.75% 0.94                          5.42% 6.80                                   (5.86)                                      
June 30 1,478.74                   0.75% 0.91                          5.14% 6.25                                   (5.34)                                      
July 31 1,479.65                   0.75% 0.94                          5.31% 6.68                                   (5.74)                                      
August 31 1,480.59                   0.75% 0.93                          5.39% 6.77                                   (5.84)                                      
September 30 1,481.52                   0.75% 0.91                          5.40% 6.57                                   (5.66)                                      
October 31 1,482.43                   0.75% 0.94                          5.41% 6.82                                   (5.88)                                      
November 30 1,483.37                   0.75% 0.90                          5.40% 6.58                                   (5.68)                                      
December 31 1,484.27                   0.75% 0.94                          5.38% 6.79                                   (5.85)                                      

(21,050.30)$                         

CHOICE BANK – CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

The County had one CD at Choice at the beginning of the year. During the year, the County purchased two additional CDs at Choice, a 12-month 
CD for $6,000,000 and another 12-month for $500,000. The former CD underperformed a similar-term Treasury by .53% and the latter by .31%. 
During the year, these CDs underperformed the benchmark by $29,000.   

Purchase Date Maturity Date Term Interest Earned 2023 Bank Account Type  Opening Balance Interest Rate  Interest 
Earned 2023 

 Interest @ 
Benchmark - 
Similar Term 

Treasury 

 Interest 
Earned @ 

Benchmark 
(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

7/24/2022 1/24/2023 6 Months 23 Choice Bank CD 1,000,000.00$          0.70% 441.10$          2.94% 1,852.60$        (1,411.50)$          
2/28/2023 2/28/2024 12 Months 306 Choice Bank CD 6,000,000.00            4.50% 226,356.16    5.03% 253,015.89     (26,659.73)          
4/18/2023 4/18/2024 12 Months 257 Choice Bank CD 500,000.00                4.50% 15,842.47      4.81% 16,933.84        (1,091.37)            

(29,162.60)$        

 

 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

23 
 

CHOICE BANK – MONEY MARKETS 

The County maintained a sizeable balance in the Choice money market for much of 2023. The money market consistently underperformed one-
month Treasuries purchased at any point during the year. In total, the Choice money market underperformed the benchmark of a one-month 
Treasury by $7,000.  

Month Days Average Balance Interest % (APY) Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest Over/(Under) Perform
January 31 258,975.16$            3.30% 714.84$                   4.41% 969.66$                            (254.82)$                               
February 28 1,004,243.60           3.55% 2,689.45                 4.59% 3,536.04                          (846.59)                                 
March 31 1,006,933.05           3.63% 3,055.28                 4.42% 3,777.02                          (721.74)                                 
April 30 1,009,988.33           3.82% 3,112.98                 4.10% 3,401.86                          (288.88)                                 
May 31 1,013,101.31           4.05% 3,420.95                 5.42% 4,660.86                          (1,239.91)                              
June 30 1,016,522.26           4.07% 3,341.99                 5.14% 4,295.65                          (953.66)                                 
July 31 1,019,864.25           4.12% 3,499.67                 5.31% 4,602.05                          (1,102.38)                              
August 31 1,023,363.92           4.33% 3,693.92                 5.39% 4,681.36                          (987.44)                                 
September 30 393,724.50               4.29% 1,361.25                 5.40% 1,746.20                          (384.95)                                 
October 31 28,419.09                 3.30% 78.44                       5.41% 130.68                              (52.24)                                    
November 30 28,497.53                 3.30% 76.12                       5.40% 126.50                              (50.38)                                    
December 31 28,573.65                 3.30% 0.04                          5.38% 130.67                              (130.63)                                 

(7,013.62)$                           

  



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

24 
 

BRAVERA BANK – CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

The County began the year with one CD at Bravera Bank (“Bravera”). This was a CD purchased on 9/15/2022 at 2.10% interest – approximately 
half the yield of a similar Treasury at 4.00%. When the CD matured, the County re-invested with Bravera for the same amount. It’s not clear if 
the County received bids when making this re-investment; however, the CD underperformed Treasuries by .29%. During the year, the CDs at 
Bravera underperformed the benchmark of similar Treasuries by $7,800.   

Purchase Date Maturity Date Term Term (Days) Bank Account Type  Opening Balance Interest Rate  Interest 
Earned 2023 

 Interest @ 
Benchmark - 
Similar Term 

Treasury 

 Interest Earned 
@ Benchmark 

(Estimate) 

Over/(Under) 
Benchmark

9/15/2022 7/15/2023 10 months 195 Bravera CD 680,000.00                2.10% 7,629.04      4.00% 14,531.51               (6,902.47)$          
7/15/2023 7/15/2024 1 Year 169 Bravera CD 680,000.00                5.06% 15,931.38    5.35% 16,844.44               (913.06)                

(7,815.53)$          

  

BRAVERA BANK – MONEY MARKET 

Beginning the last half of 2023, the County deposited a substantial amount of its investments in the Bravera money market. The money market 
consistently underperformed the benchmark of a one-month Treasuries throughout the year. During the year, the Bravera money market 
underperformed the benchmark of a one-month Treasury by $5,300.   



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

25 
 

Month Days Average Balance Interest % (APY) Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest Over/(Under) Perform
January 31 -$                           -                              -$                         4.41% -$                                  -$                                       
February 28 -                              -                              -                            4.59% -                                     -                                          
March 31 -                              -                              -                            4.42% -                                     -                                          
April 30 -                              -                              -                            4.10% -                                     -                                          
May 31 -                              -                              -                            5.42% -                                     -                                          
June 30 -                              -                              -                            5.14% -                                     -                                          
July 31 -                              -                              -                            5.31% -                                     -                                          
August 31 1,645,161.29           5.12% 7,397.26                 5.39% 7,525.77                          (128.51)                                 
September 30 3,574,553.52           5.12% 14,687.93               5.40% 15,853.39                        (1,165.46)                              
October 31 4,022,085.19           5.12% 17,080.09               5.41% 18,495.30                        (1,415.21)                              
November 30 4,039,165.28           5.12% 16,599.31               5.40% 17,930.42                        (1,331.11)                              
December 31 4,055,764.59           5.12% 17,223.11               5.38% 18,547.57                        (1,324.46)                              

(5,364.73)$                           

BANK OF THE WEST – MONEY MARKET 

The County maintained a significant amount of cash in a Bank of the West account during the first quarter of the year earning a fraction of the 
benchmark rate of a one-month Treasury. In total, this account underperformed the benchmark of a one-month Treasury by $10,541. 

Month Days Average Balance Interest % (APY) Interest Earned Benchmark Rate Benchmark Interest Over/(Under) Perform
January 31 1,162,884.68$         0.05000% 9.88$                       4.41% 4,354.08$                        (4,344.20)$                           
February 28 1,162,893.60           0.05000% 8.92                          4.59% 4,094.66                          (4,085.74)                              
March 31 562,694.77               -                            4.42% 2,110.68                          (2,110.68)                              

(10,540.62)$                         



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

26 
 

FIXED INCOME INVESTMENTS 

The County maintains a fixed income investment portfolio with Wells Fargo and with Bremer Bank. The portfolios were purchased several years 
ago when interest rates were much lower. With rising rates, the value of the portfolios have declined; however, since the investments are in 
bonds, our interest payments are not affected by a change in the market value of the bond. The County began divesting of the Wells Fargo 
portfolio within the last year or two, but we still maintain a significant balance in this account. 

The market value of the accounts at year end are summarized in the below table. 

Wells Fargo Bremer Total
Less than 1 Year 3,103,648.00$  367,525.45$     3,471,173.45$  
1-2 Years 1,352,297.25    550,254.76        1,902,552.01    
2-5 Years 315,390.95        1,153,040.61    1,468,431.56    
5-10 Years 523,614.25        532,469.33        1,056,083.58    
10+ Years 643,365.20        59,626.18          702,991.38        

5,938,315.65$  2,662,916.33$  8,601,231.98$  

 

 

 

 

  



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 
 

27 
 

POLICY CONCERNS 

The County’s investment policy is sufficiently detailed and robust for the County’s needs. The policy lists objectives in priority order, which 
makes the objectives easy to follow. The policy needs some addendums, such as investment parameters and internal control documents. But the 
main challenge the County faces with its investment policy is a failure to follow the policy. For example, the County went four months – from 
April 4th to August 2nd– without making a single investment at BND, despite collecting sales taxes monthly. This runs contrary to investment 
objective #3 – Yield – that “the investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return.” Other examples 
include failing to develop cash flow estimates and failing to diversify the portfolio by investment type and maturity. Failing to provide an annual 
report to the Commission in a timely manner is still another example. 

CHANGES TO INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The County’s current investment strategy prioritizes convenience over the investment objectives laid out in the policy. For instance, the County 
accepted a lower rate of return in money markets to avoid making active investment decisions such as taking bids, transferring cash to the high 
bidder, and making the required journal entries into the accounting system. In fact, the County’s use of money markets is so pervasive that it 
accounts for 80% of our non-sales tax investments (sales taxes are held in trust the Bank of North Dakota) and 60% of total investments. As 
indicated earlier in the report, money markets under-performed Treasuries in every month of the year.  

Security Type Amount % of portfolio
FIXED INCOME SECURITIES 8,880,820.05$    10.44%
CD 18,121,056.04    21.31%
MONEY MARKET 29,327,783.91    34.49%
US TREASURIES 28,706,621.00    33.76%

85,036,281.00$  

 

The convenience provided by the money markets comes at a price. First, we earned less money than we would have earned by investing in 
Treasuries. Second, we failed to “lock in” any investments during the year, which would protect us against falling interest rates.  

The recommended change to strategy investment strategy is to follow the investment policy as written. As mentioned, certain addendums 
should be considered, such as specific investment parameters and internal control documents. The investment parameters should include 



REPORT ON INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
BURLEIGH COUNTY 

JANUARY 1, 2023 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2023 

28 

guidelines for term and type of investment. Internal control documents should include, at a minimum, an investment checklist documenting who 
made the investment; who approved the investment; why the investment was chosen; and what bids were received; among other things. At a 
minimum, the County should begin following the investment policy as written immediately, whether or not the County adopts any addendums.  



PPrevious Day Composite Report
Standard Previous Day Composite Report
As of 12/30/2022
Company: COUNTY OF BURLEIGH
User: Brandi Caya 01/03/2023 09:06 AM ET
Commercial Electronic Office® Treasury Information Reporting

Currency: USD
Bank:  Account: (ND)

Balances

Closing Ledger Balance 5,618,476.00
Closing Collected Balance 3,000,000.00
Opening Available Balance 36,909,083.65
One Day Float 2,618,476.00
Two+ Day Float .00
MTD Average Closing Ledger Balance 10,075,156.36
MTD Average Closing Collected Balance 8,888,810.71

Total Credits 3,747,357.63
Total Debits 4,892,292.63
Total Number Credits 8
Total Number Debits 16

Sweep Activity

Sweep Ending Balance 27,371,524.47
Funds Pending Inv/Red 3,919,083.18
Pending Investment Position 31,290,607.65
Shares Purchased(Credit) 17,982,359.42
Shares Redeemed(Debit) .00
Dividends Paid .00
Fund Yield 4.04%
SEC Yield(7-Day Average) 4.04%
Accrued Dividends Month-To-Date 9,631.40
Last Month's Dividends 2,863.02
Dividends Year-To-Date .00

Summaries

Type of Credit Number of  Items Amount

Total ACH Credits 5 97,369.83
Total Deposits 2 2,847,177.49
Total Wire Transfer Credits 1 802,810.31

Credit Totals 8 3,747,357.63

Type of Debit Number of  Items Amount

Total ACH Debits 1 208,620.89
Total Checks Paid 12 88,793.20
Total Return Item Debits 1 3,904.14
Total Sweep Debits 1 3,919,083.18
Total ZBA Debits 1 671,891.22

Debit Totals 16 4,892,292.63

Credit Transactions

12/30/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 74,636.00
Cust Ref: 00000000000 BBank Ref: IA924686471058
Unique ID: 00000091006376168690
BURLEIGH TAX ND  Settlement 123022 000016657938054 Burleigh County, ND

12/30/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 17,349.75
Cust Ref: 00018611665 BBank Ref: IA272183912787
Unique ID: 00000091003653218659
5/3 BANKCARD SYS COMB. DEP. 123022 4445018611665      5/3 BANKCARD    COMB. DEP.
4445018611665

12/30/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 4,285.81
Cust Ref: 00000000000 BBank Ref: IA000013900873
Unique ID: 00000091006378334720
MERCHANT BANKCD  DEPOSIT    221229 496004060885    BURLEIGH COUNTY

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH

Page: 1

APPENDIX A.1.

29

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



PPrevious Day Composite Report
Custom
As of 12/15/2022
Company: COUNTY OF BURLEIGH
User: Brandi Caya 12/19/2022 09:28 AM ET
Commercial Electronic Office® Treasury Information Reporting

Currency: USD
Bank:  Account: (ND)

Balances

Closing Ledger Balance 9,205,190.98
Closing Collected Balance 9,200,259.98
Opening Available Balance 9,205,190.98
One Day Float 4,931.00
Two+ Day Float .00
MTD Average Closing Ledger Balance 9,650,113.31
MTD Average Closing Collected Balance 9,610,403.91

Total Credits 43,473.47
Total Debits 1,714.09
Total Number Credits 6
Total Number Debits 6

Sweep Activity

Sweep Ending Balance .00
Funds Pending Inv/Red .00
Pending Investment Position .00
Shares Purchased(Credit) .00
Shares Redeemed(Debit) .00
Dividends Paid .00
Fund Yield 4.01%
SEC Yield(7-Day Average) 3.66%
Accrued Dividends Month-To-Date 153.63
Last Month's Dividends 2,863.02
Dividends Year-To-Date 74,460.69

Summaries

Type of Credit Number of  Items Amount

Total ACH Credits 5 31,432.95
Total Deposits 1 12,040.52

Credit Totals 6 43,473.47

Type of Debit Number of  Items Amount

Total Checks Paid 6 1,714.09

Debit Totals 6 1,714.09

Credit Transactions

12/15/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 22,549.55
Cust Ref: 00000000000 BBank Ref: IA924684521214
Unique ID: 00000091006071591422
BURLEIGH TAX ND  Settlement 121522 000016552718990 Burleigh County, ND

12/15/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 8,119.08
Cust Ref: 00000000000 BBank Ref: IA310590553475
Unique ID: 00000091005773436699
ND ASSOCIATION O NDACo COUN Dec 15 NDACo - Nov VZOP Coordinator Reimb

12/15/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 500.00
Cust Ref: 00000000000 BBank Ref: IA001034095485
Unique ID: 00000091005862452753
SIMPLIFILE LC    RECFEE1213 121322 NDC9AP-         BURLEIGH COUNTY

12/15/2022 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT CCredit Amount: 244.32
Cust Ref: 00018611665 BBank Ref: IA272180052725
Unique ID: 00000091006079020763
5/3 BANKCARD SYS COMB. DEP. 121522 4445018611665      5/3 BANKCARD    COMB. DEP.
4445018611665

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH

Page: 1

APPENDIX A.2.

30

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



Previous Day Composite Report
Standard Previous Day Composite Report

As of 02/16/2023

Company: COUNTY OF BURLEIGH
User: Brandi Caya 02/17/2023 09:16 AM ET

Commercial Electronic Office® Treasury Information Reporting

Currency: USD
Bank:  Account: (ND)

Balances

Closing Ledger Balance 3,011,474.00
Closing Collected Balance 3,000,000.00
Opening Available Balance 56,883,652.77
One Day Float .00
Two+ Day Float 11,474.00
MTD Average Closing Ledger Balance 5,385,524.25
MTD Average Closing Collected Balance 3,000,000.00

Total Credits 157,231.26
Total Debits 4,496,574.26
Total Number Credits 5
Total Number Debits 14

Sweep Activity

Sweep Ending Balance 49,410,089.35
Funds Pending Inv/Red 4,473,563.42
Pending Investment Position 53,883,652.77
Shares Purchased(Credit) .00
Shares Redeemed(Debit) 25,890,109.59
Dividends Paid .00
Fund Yield 4.31%
SEC Yield(7-Day Average) 4.31%
Accrued Dividends Month-To-Date 149,338.70
Last Month's Dividends 154,511.22
Dividends Year-To-Date 154,511.22

Summaries

Type of Credit Number of  Items Amount

Total ACH Credits 5 157,231.26

Credit Totals 5 157,231.26

Type of Debit Number of  Items Amount

Total Checks Paid 12 19,736.05
Total Return Item Debits 1 3,274.79
Total Sweep Debits 1 4,473,563.42

Debit Totals 14 4,496,574.26

Credit Transactions

2/16/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 90,181.43
Cust Ref: 00000000000 Bank Ref: IA924684114771
Unique ID: 00000091006061864651
BURLEIGH TAX ND  Settlement 021623 000017118073322 Burleigh County, ND

2/16/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 46,612.31
Cust Ref: 00018611665 Bank Ref: IA272185653926
Unique ID: 00000091006068768150
5/3 BANKCARD SYS COMB. DEP. 021623 4445018611665      5/3 BANKCARD    COMB. DEP.
4445018611665

2/16/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 13,254.07
Cust Ref: 01330047242 Bank Ref: IA000015693910
Unique ID: 00000091005971808700
AMERICAN EXPRESS SETTLEMENT 230215 1330047242      BURLEIGH CO 1330047242

2/16/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 4,498.75
Cust Ref: 00000000000 Bank Ref: IA001035093212
Unique ID: 00000091005775110009
SIMPLIFILE LC    RECFEE0214 021423 NDC9AP-         BURLEIGH COUNTY

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH

Page: 1

APPENDIX A.1.
APPENDIX A.3.

31

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



Previous Day Composite Report
Standard Previous Day Composite Report

As of 05/23/2023

Company: COUNTY OF BURLEIGH
User: BERNADETTE IVEY 05/24/2023 09:23 AM ET

Commercial Electronic Office® Treasury Information Reporting

Currency: USD
Bank:  Account: (ND)

Balances

Closing Ledger Balance 3,034,638.00
Closing Collected Balance 3,000,000.00
Opening Available Balance 20,818,475.34
One Day Float 34,638.00
Two+ Day Float .00
MTD Average Closing Ledger Balance 3,071,561.43
MTD Average Closing Collected Balance 3,000,000.00

Total Credits 51,113.95
Total Debits 33,229.95
Total Number Credits 4
Total Number Debits 16

Sweep Activity

Sweep Ending Balance 17,781,313.50
Funds Pending Inv/Red 2,523.84
Pending Investment Position 17,783,837.34
Shares Purchased(Credit) .00
Shares Redeemed(Debit) 227,112.92
Dividends Paid .00
Fund Yield 4.94%
SEC Yield(7-Day Average) 4.92%
Accrued Dividends Month-To-Date 50,121.86
Last Month's Dividends 68,392.04
Dividends Year-To-Date 600,176.49

Summaries

Type of Credit Number of  Items Amount

Total ACH Credits 3 5,521.00
Total Deposits 1 45,592.95

Credit Totals 4 51,113.95

Type of Debit Number of  Items Amount

Total ACH Debits 1 871.00
Total Checks Paid 13 29,664.32
Total Return Item Debits 1 170.79
Total Sweep Debits 1 2,523.84

Debit Totals 16 33,229.95

Credit Transactions

5/23/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 2,894.15
Cust Ref: 00000000000 Bank Ref: IA001037688516
Unique ID: 00000091004430999613
SIMPLIFILE LC    RECFEE0519 051923 NDC9AP-         BURLEIGH COUNTY

5/23/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 2,501.85
Cust Ref: 00000000000 Bank Ref: IA924688813896
Unique ID: 00000091005664206563
BURLEIGH TAX ND  Settlement 052323 000017952579858 Burleigh County, ND

5/23/2023 169 / MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Credit Amount: 125.00
Cust Ref: 00000000000 Bank Ref: IA000016289467
Unique ID: 00000091005771237389
CSC              5232023C          BURLEIGH, ND    BURLEIGH COUNTY, ND

MISCELLANEOUS ACH CREDIT Total Credit Amount 5,521.00

5/23/2023 301 / COMMERCIAL DEPOSIT Credit Amount: 45,592.95

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
COUNTY OF BURLEIGH

Page: 1

CSC - Recorder

APPENDIX A.3.

32

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



a b c d
a * b a - c

Month Days
 Investment 

Interest Recorded 
Correct Amount

 Actual Interest
Earned 

 Over/(Under) 
Paid  

January 31 965.38$  38.84% 375.00$             590.38$                  
February 28 769.95 48.03% 369.77                400.18 
March 31 860.34 29.28% 251.91                608.43 
April 30 645.53 18.74% 120.98                524.55 
May 31 11,197.79                23.84% 2,669.29            8,528.50 
June 30 4,511.03 34.53% 1,557.80            2,953.23 
July 31 4,687.50 45.54% 2,134.89            2,552.61 
August 31 4,751.92 28.23% 1,341.32            3,410.60 
September 30 4,810.22 39.03% 1,877.62            2,932.60 
October 31 4,990.78 49.40% 2,465.25            2,525.53 
November 30 4,868.39 34.93% 1,700.48            3,167.91 
December 31 5,049.97 43.02% 2,172.55            2,877.42 

31,071.94               
a b c d

a - c

Month Days
Average Daily 

Balance
 Cash Interest 

Recorded 
 Cash Interest 

Earned 
 Over/(Under) 

Paid  
January 31 900,745.90             - 3,123.37 (3,123.37)                
February 28 900,745.90             - 2,974.53 (2,974.53)                
March 31 553,421.68             - 2,087.22 (2,087.22)                
April 30 417,768.79             - 1,601.81 (1,601.81)                
May 31 117,768.79             - 489.91 (489.91) 
June 30 117,768.79             - 478.97 (478.97) 
July 31 122,458.56             - 522.16 (522.16) 
August 31 263,151.62             - 1,161.01 (1,161.01)                
September 30 263,151.62             - 1,124.62 (1,124.62)                
October 31 267,889.15             - 1,187.97 (1,187.97)                
November 30 410,014.91             - 1,761.29 (1,761.29)                
December 31 417,565.18             - 1,851.89 (1,851.89)                

(18,364.74)             

Net overpaid to CenComm fund 12,707.19$             

Total amount overpaid to fund 2908 for 2023:

Total amount overpaid to fund 2908 for 2023:

APPENDIX B.1.

The County has a negative cash balance of $1m in the CenComm fund. The County also has a large investment
with CenComm. The County should have cashed the investment to pay the negative cash balance.
Rather than do so, the County allocated the entire investment balance to the CenComm fund, per our
JPA with the City. 

The County has failed to allocat interest earned in the Wells Fargo Sweep account to any fund 
including CenComm.

The combination of these two errors resulted in an overpayment to the CenComm fund, shared with
the City of Bismarck, of over $12,000.

33



APPENDIX C.1.

This is the Deputy Auditor/Treasurer's current job description. The Deputy/Auditor Treasurer 
functions as the Treasurer, which includes investments, and has historically done so since the 
combining of the Auditor & Treasurer office.

34

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



APPENDIX C.1.

35



Joan Zimmerman Accounts Receivable / Daily Checkout / Supply Orders / Liquor Licenses Gaming, Raffle, 
Bingo Permits / Fast Forward (Mail) / Special Assessment Creation / Website 
Maintenance / Duties as Assigned  

Erika White Office and Election Manager / Duties as Assigned 

Brandi Caya Month End Processing / Monthly Apportioning / Banking and Investments / Escrow 
Accounts (Property Taxes) / Mill Levy Calculations / Duties as Assigned 

New AP Employee Accounts Payable / Apportioning / Credit Card Coordinator / Phone Bills / Duties as 
Assigned 

Erin Buchwitz Deed Transfers / Legal Publications / Township Information / Website Maintenance / 
Commission Meeting Minutes and Agendas / Abatement Maintenance / Entry of 
Homestead and Vet Credits / 3 Year Delinquent Taxes / Special Assessment 
Maintenance / Multiple Parcel Maintenance / Duties as Assigned 

Tessa Knudson Property File Maintenance / New Subdivisions – Annexations / Property Splits / Legal 
Descriptions / Deed Transfers / Property Tax Assessments / Mill Levies / CAMA System 
/ Reporting of Homestead and Vet Credits / Real Property Assessments (Inspections 
Outside of Bismarck) / Equalization / Mobile Home Taxation and Maintenance / Duties 
as Assigned 

Mark Splonskowski Real Property Assessments (Inspections Outside of Bismarck) / Equalization / Property 
Tax Estimates / CAMA System / Exemptions / Mobile Home Taxation and Maintenance 
/ Duties as Assigned 

Trudy Jackson Mobile Home Taxation and Maintenance / Abatement / Building Permit Maintenance 
(CAMA) / Deed Maintenance (CAMA) / Duties as Assigned 

Al Vietmeier Deputy Auditor/Tax Director – Oversees Tax Equalization Department Real Property 
Assessments (Outside of Bismarck) / Equalization / Abatements / Property Tax 
Exemptions and Credits / GIS / Notice of Increase / Duties as Assigned 

Robin Grenz Deputy Auditor/Treasurer – Oversees Property Tax Investments / Investments / ACH 
Transfers / Month End / Online Payments / Duties as Assigned 

Kevin Glatt Auditor/Treasurer – Oversees Entire Office 

ALL STAFF ASSISTS with TAX STATEMENT MAILING, TAX COLLECTIONS and 
ELECTIONS! 

Clyde Thompson Chief Accountant/Finance Director – Annual Audit, Budget, Mill Levies, Building and 
Grounds , Property and Casualty Insurance  

APPENDIX C.2.

This is an old "Office Duties" file found on the Auditor's drive by the Finance Department. This describes who is 
was historically responsible for Investments, which was always the Deputy Auditor/Treasurer and Auditor/
Treasurer, not the Finance Director.

36



Investment Policy 

One of my goals for 2005 was the development and adoption of a county 
investment policy.  I believe it is prudent for Burleigh County to have a formal 
policy covering the investment of county funds for several reasons.  To help meet 
this goal I attended a Government Finance Officers Association Training 
Conference in April of this year.  Shortly after I returned I visited with Park 
Commissioner Gregoire (after a Park Board Meeting) about my plans to draft an 
Investment Policy, hoping to draw upon his knowledge and experience as an 
investment advisor.    Mr. Gregoire agreed to review the policy upon completion 
of the draft.  Deputy Auditor\Treasurer Bettenhausen and I also discussed the 
proposed policy with Comm. Johnson and requested that he provide us with his 
insights regarding the policy as he also is a licensed investment professional.   

A DRAFT INVESTMENT POLICY was provided to all Commissioners, State’s 
Attorney Riha, HR Director Czosnek, and Mr. Gregoire on August 25, 2005.   
This draft was the culmination of many, many hours of effort by several members 
of staff.  Minor changes were made based upon State’s Attorney Riha’s advice.    
Gregoire offered several thought provoking questions AND favorable comments 
regarding the draft.   

THE INVESTMENT POLICY 
I. Sets standards and parameters for county investments,
II. Identifies county investment objectives,
III. Organizes and formalizes investment activities,
IV. Helps protect the assets of county from inappropriate and\or poor

investment decisions, 
V. Identifies internal controls,
VI. GASB requirements,
VII. Enhances Audit performance.
VIII. Educates Investment staff and elected officials.

THE INVESTMENT POLICY FORMALIZES WHAT THE COUNTY TREASURER 
HAS BEEN DOING FOR SEVERAL YEARS.   

APPENDIX C.3.

This is an old document the Finance Department found on the Auditor's drive. It describes the 
historical practice surrounding investments and some of the history regarding the investment 
policy. This document describes how the Deputy Auditor/Treasurer continued with Treasurer 
duties after the offices were combined. This includes investments as specifically mentioned below 
in the highlighted portion. 

37



In response to Commissioner Woodcox’s comments at the last Commission 
meeting, I believe his comments were unfounded, unwarranted, not well thought, 
and disrespectful to my office and Mr. Gregoire.   

Woodcox’s statement that this policy puts the power of all investments into one 
person’s hands in not very well thought or studied as ND Century Code provides 
this authority to the County Treasurer. 

Commissioner Woodcox had ample opportunity to visit with me and\ or staff prior 
to the meeting regarding Gregoire’s role and possible conflict of interest along 
with current investment practices.   

PERHAPS WE SHOULD DISCUSS ALL SUCH CONFLICTS. 

Would Comm. Johnson not have the same conflict?   What about Woodcox’s 
own conflicts?  As a matter of fact, shortly after the July County Commission 
meeting, Woodcox visited with Deputy Auditor\Treasurer Bettenhausen regarding 
investment of county funds.  Woodcox was briefed on current investment 
practices and attempted to use the influence of his office to persuade Deputy 
Auditor\Treasurer Bettenhausen to direct investments to BNC Bank where he sits 
on the Board of Directors and has a financial interest.  (Attachment) 

Gregoire’s review of the Draft Investment Policy did not and will not create any 
conflict of interest.  Gregoire will be required to meet same requirements as any 
other potential depository of Burleigh County funds.  Furthermore, Gregoire did 
not attempt to use his position on the County Park Board to influence the 
investment decisions of myself or any other staff member.  Unfortunately I cannot 
say the same about Comm. Woodcox.   

In regards to any perceived conflict of interest that I may have, be advised my 
role in the investment process has been as a resource to Deputy 
Auditor\Treasurer Bettenhausen.   Mrs. Bettenhausen was responsible for the 
investments prior to the office combination and has continued that role.  I have 
no interest in Kirkwood Bank (attachments) and offer the following affidavit 
willingly signed by Bettenhausen confirming that I have never tried to influence 
the investment of funds in Kirkwood Bank.  Unfortunately I cannot say the same 
about Comm. Woodcox.   

APPENDIX C.3.

38

Leigh Jacobs
Highlight



Does this policy need to be approved by the Commission? 

ETHICS 

APPENDIX C.3.

39



Misc Receipt Review
Review invoices from the Accounting Technician

Financial Review
Budget Performance Reports to the Department Heads and Commissioners
Journal Entry Review
Attend Commission Meetings
Review and Sign off on bi-weekly check run
Vision Zero Reimbursement Voucher submitted to NDACo by the 10th of each month
Update: K-Drive-Finance Director-Sales Tax - Detention Bond: This is done by going to:
https://www.treasurer.nd.gov/      
then revenue distribution - historical revenue distributions-county-select Burleigh
enter the appropriate values

Quarterly Billing - Files in drawer 2 of the left filing cabinet
911
BMDC - Bill Morton County's share
Municipal Court
Extention - Horticulture Agent
Send CenComm quarterly report to Angie

ARPA Report File in drawer 1 of the right filing cabinet
Login to ID.me - click on Compliance reports on the left side of the screen - 
click on the appropriate report for the quarter

Financial Summary to the Commissioners
Professional Building Parking collection - K Drive - Contracts-Leases - Parking - Tracking Sheets

Verify all parties have paid for the quarter, if not contact to collect

May and October - Haul Road transfer from 2140 to 4140 and payment of Invoice

Spec Ops - $400 bill to Bismarck Police Department
Finance Manual Review and update as needed
Year End Processing
Prepare Audit documents for annual audit - K Drive-Finance Director-Audits
Prepare Annual Budget - K Drive-Finance Director-Budget

Prepare Preliminary Budget

Semi-Annual

Annual

Daily Items

Monthly Items

Quarterly Items

APPENDIX C.4.

Finance Director Recurring Duties

This is a "duty list" for the Finance
director provided by Auditor
Splonskowski to the Finance
Director in January.

Although the current Finance 
Director does not agree this is
an appropriate list of duties for
any finance director to perform,
notably, nowhere does the word 
"investment" appear in the list
of duties.

40

https://www.treasurer.nd.gov/


Lead Budget Committee Hearings
Present Preliminary Budget to the Commission
Present Final Budget to the Commission

Prepare Preliminary Tax Levies - K Drive-Robin F Drive-Mill Levy Robin
1. Obtain the new Max Mill Levy Worksheets from the State Tax Department
as well as the annual Levy Limitations guide.
2. Run the Valuation Listing and Property Class Valuation Reports from Taxwise
3. Obtain the Prelimary Budgets from all taxing districts.
4. Upon completion of the worksheets enter the information on the Mill Levy Sheet
Front and Back.  Work with a member of the office to proof that sheet.
5. Upon completion have the Deputy Auditor/Treasurer proof the Max Levy Sheets.
6. Following proofing provide Tessa the Mill Levy Sheet to enter into Taxwise.

Prepare Final Tax Levies - K Drive-Robin F Drive-Mill Levy Robin
1. Update using the above processes using current Valuations and Final Budgets.

Annual Insurance Review and Renewal - Donna with Bain will send all renewal docs
Annual Capital Improvement Plan applications due from department heads by June 1st

APPENDIX C.4.

41



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

42



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

43



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

44



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

45



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

46



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

47



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

48



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

49



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

50



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

51



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

52



EXHIBIT A 
BURLEIGH COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICY

APPENDIX D.1.

53



From: Caya, Brandi M.
To: Splonskowski, Mark D.; Jacobs, Leigh
Cc: Schmidt, Taylor
Subject: RE: Investment Committee
Date: Sunday, January 28, 2024 3:40:49 PM

Same.

Brandi Caya
Deputy Auditor/Treasurer
Burleigh County
(701) 222-6719

From: Splonskowski, Mark D. <msplonskowski@nd.gov> 
Sent: Friday, January 26, 2024 4:01 PM
To: Jacobs, Leigh <ljacobs@nd.gov>
Cc: Schmidt, Taylor <schmidt.taylor@nd.gov>; Caya, Brandi M. <brcaya@nd.gov>
Subject: RE: Investment Committee

Im open on the 2nd.

From: Jacobs, Leigh <ljacobs@nd.gov> 
Sent: Friday, January 26, 2024 3:26 PM
To: Splonskowski, Mark D. <msplonskowski@nd.gov>
Cc: Schmidt, Taylor <schmidt.taylor@nd.gov>; Caya, Brandi M. <brcaya@nd.gov>
Subject: Investment Committee

Good afternoon,

May I suggest we reconvene the investment committee ASAP (AFTER the 1099 deadline).

We have a considerable amount of interest income budgeted for FY 2024, and we need to ensure
we reinvest things as they mature so we hit our budgeted revenues.

I’m a little concerned about the timing considering Justin left around October. It’s been four months,
and if he made some shorter-term investments prior to his departure, those could be coming due or
could already be matured.

Does anyone have availability on Friday, Feb 2?

Leigh Jacobs, CPA
Finance Director
Burleigh County

316 N. 5th St
Bismarck, ND 58501

APPENDIX E.1.

54

mailto:brcaya@nd.gov
mailto:msplonskowski@nd.gov
mailto:ljacobs@nd.gov
mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
mailto:ljacobs@nd.gov
mailto:msplonskowski@nd.gov
mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
mailto:brcaya@nd.gov


From: Schmidt, Taylor
To: Jacobs, Leigh
Subject: FW: Investment Committee Meeting
Date: Wednesday, December 11, 2024 10:21:50 AM
Attachments: Burleigh County Investment Committee Agenda.docx

Taylor Schmidt
Deputy Finance Director
Burleigh County

(701) 712-8354
schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
316 N 5th St Ste 104
Bismarck, ND 58501
www.burleigh.gov

From: Schmidt, Taylor 
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 4:01 PM
To: Splonskowski, Mark D. <msplonskowski@nd.gov>; Caya, Brandi M. <brcaya@nd.gov>
Cc: Jacobs, Leigh <ljacobs@nd.gov>
Subject: Investment Committee Meeting

Good afternoon,

I’ve been going over some of our investment procedures and would like to discuss them in
person. I’ve attached an agenda that is a rough outline of what I’ve been looking at. Would
everyone able to make room in your calendars for an Investment Meeting sometime next
week? Let me know what times will/won’t work.

Thanks,

Taylor Schmidt
Deputy Finance Director
Burleigh County

(701) 712-8354
schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
316 N 5th St Ste 104
Bismarck, ND 58501
www.burleigh.gov

APPENDIX E.2.

55

mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
mailto:ljacobs@nd.gov
mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.burleigh.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cljacobs%40nd.gov%7C8f2d34b12f0f4ae4c7a008dd19ffd16b%7C2dea0464da514a88bae2b3db94bc0c54%7C0%7C0%7C638695309101422246%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=k6m3QZeQ29%2B2whPsqypVs14CYwnjlahL5J1jwLSefJ8%3D&reserved=0
mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.burleigh.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cljacobs%40nd.gov%7C8f2d34b12f0f4ae4c7a008dd19ffd16b%7C2dea0464da514a88bae2b3db94bc0c54%7C0%7C0%7C638695309101443432%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cLLCyA%2FxxPsk0DSRFIIIzo5NARvODfQwDKt048zRZM4%3D&reserved=0

Burleigh County Investment Committee Agenda

Date: TBD

1. Interest Allocation

a. Investment Policy Review

i. Section 2 Line 1 – Pooling of Funds

b. Sweep Account Interest Allocation

i. Allocating sweep account interest based on Average Daily Balance

ii. Removing non general fund dollars from sweep account

iii. Amend Pooling of Funds Policy

2. Cash Flow

a. Investment Policy Review

i. Section 2 Line 1b – Interest Rate Risk

ii. Section 2 Line 2 – Liquidity

iii. Section 8 Line 1– Diversification Bids

iv. Section 8 Line 2 – Maximum Maturities

v. Section 8 Line 3 – Competitive Bids

b. Cash Flow considerations

i. Interest Rate Risk Example

ii. Negative Cash

iii. Investment Maturities vs Cash Flow Needs

3. Reporting

a. Investment Policy Review

i. Section 9 Line 1 – Methods

ii. Section 9 Line 2 – Performance Standards

iii. Section 9 Line 3 – Marking to Market

b. Investment Market Value

c. Investment Evaluation

d. Investment Report



Burleigh County Investment Committee Agenda 

Date: TBD 

1. Interest Allocation
a. Investment Policy Review

i. Section 2 Line 1 – Pooling of Funds
b. Sweep Account Interest Allocation

i. Allocating sweep account interest based on Average Daily Balance
ii. Removing non general fund dollars from sweep account

iii. Amend Pooling of Funds Policy
2. Cash Flow

a. Investment Policy Review
i. Section 2 Line 1b – Interest Rate Risk

ii. Section 2 Line 2 – Liquidity
iii. Section 8 Line 1– Diversification Bids
iv. Section 8 Line 2 – Maximum Maturities
v. Section 8 Line 3 – Competitive Bids

b. Cash Flow considerations
i. Interest Rate Risk Example

ii. Negative Cash
iii. Investment Maturities vs Cash Flow Needs

3. Reporting
a. Investment Policy Review

i. Section 9 Line 1 – Methods
ii. Section 9 Line 2 – Performance Standards

iii. Section 9 Line 3 – Marking to Market
b. Investment Market Value
c. Investment Evaluation
d. Investment Report

APPENDIX E.2.

This is the agenda 
from the May 
Investment 
Committee meeting.

56



September 10, 2024 - Investment Meeting Agenda 
I. WF Zero Balance Account

a. PEG set at $10m for a time
b. lowered to $3m
c. Should lower to $0

i. Did we contact WF about lowering PEG to $0?

Brandi emailed Wells Fargo to lower the PEG to $1.5m. 

Taylor asked for terms of the account but did not get terms from WF. Taylor said no PEG is required, per 
WF 50% of clients use $0 balance. No additional fee – fees based on transactions. Fee is approximately 
$1273 per month.  

At $3m PEG we are losing $12,000 per month in interest on the sweep at current rates. 

At zero balance we would earn $12,000 per month in interest at current rates.  

At $1.5m PEG we lose $6000 a month in potential interest @ current rates 

ND State Treasurer operates with a zero balance account. 

Action item: Brandi will inquire with Wells Fargo about lowering PEG to $0 and if that will increase 
fees. 

II. Concentration of credit at Financial Institution
a. We have $30m in First International
b. We have $68m as of 9/5/2024
c. 43.5% of cash is at FIL

i. This seems to be over-concentrated
ii. ACTION ITEM: Determine what is the max % of total cash we are willing to keep

at a given financial institution (15%? 25%?, etc)
iii. If First international is over the max, then the recommendation is to move the

all/most/some of account # 661 out and into other financial
institutions/investments

d. We have $20m in Wells Fargo cash + $6/7/8m in WF investments
i. This seems to be over-concentrated as well

ii. General Fund is $5m over last year at this time due to increased RE taxes

Mark trying to consolidate banks down to 5, perhaps 6. 

Finance Dept suggests expanding on the policy to define what % is a concentration at a 
financial institution, and what % is a concentration in a maturity and/or what % should we 
have in a given maturity or type 

APPENDIX E.3.

57



Action item: Mark wants to consolidate banks and stay in ND banks. Finance will look at 
banks to see if any can be removed. See what kind of investments we have and how long 
it will take to get out of there. Can we mature investments out of BNC 

III. Concentration of investments by maturity
a. We have approximately $50m in money markets/sweep

i. $20m WF
ii. $15.8m FIL 662

iii. $13.5M FIL ARPA
b. Per policy we should be diversified in our maturity of investments
c. Money markets will decline due to rate cuts
d. ACTION ITEM: Determine the maturity distribution for reserves and ARPA (i.e.

3month/6month/9month)

IV. Concentration of investments by type
a. We are heavily in money markets
b. Our other investments are mostly CDs
c. Treasuries have a higher yield

i. For example our money markets are probably invested in short term (1month)
Treasuries on a rolling basis

ii. Money markets must be in allowable investments per NDCC
iii. FIL makes money by discounting their investments (if Treasuries are 5.5%, FIL

gives us 5.25% and pockets the difference)
d. ACTION ITEM: Determine the mix of investments by type (this may need to be revisited

as rates change)

Mark would like to move cash into more of an even mix between the various investment types (CD, 
Fixed Income, Money Market, CD, Treasuries) 

Mark would like to trial an investment mix and evaluate how it is going. At that point if it is going well, 
we can draft a policy or guidelines 

Taylor mentioned first international money market is mostly reserves and can probably be invested for a 
longer period. 

Action Item: Finance will create a hypothetical investment mix for Mark to review. We will focus on 
Reserves at this point in time 

V. Cash forecast
a. Historically the county has invested reserves
b. The county should consider investing operating cash

i. We collected 95%+ of our taxes by Feb 15
ii. These could be invested to mature as we need to pay bills throughout the year

APPENDIX E.3.

58



c. To do so requires a cash forecast
d. Finance can assist but the Auditor/Treasurer should review
e. ACTION ITEM: Draft a cash forecast auditor to review

VI. Negative Cash
a. Having negative cash makes cash forecasting difficult
b. For example, if the general fund has $5m but CenComm has -$1m then the general fund

really has $4m
c. Negative cash is causing us to over-allocate interest to certain funds such as CenComm
d. For example, Provident Building has negative cash but has an investment
e. Fort Rice has negative cash but has an investment
f. Etc
g. ACTION ITEM: Correct the negative cash balances [this is a recommendation the

Commission voted to adopt]. We may need to change the accounting practices to use
payable/receivable or due to/from OR use cash forecasting to avoid going negative

VII. Investment checklist
a. Do we need to develop a checklist where everyone involved signs off or initials off on a

checklist for each investment?
b. Checklist could be saved and stored the with record of investment

ACTION ITEM: Finance will prepare an investment checklist for Auditor to review 

APPENDIX E.3.

59



From: Schmidt, Taylor
To: Splonskowski, Mark D.; Caya, Brandi M.
Cc: Jacobs, Leigh; Binder, Pamela J.
Subject: Investment Mix
Date: Thursday, September 19, 2024 11:54:28 AM
Attachments: image001.png

APPENDIX E.4.

Good morning,

These tables show our current cash and investment mix as of 08/31/2024 (July fixed income 
balances). As we discussed in our investment meeting, per investment policy diversification of 
financial institution and investment type are the County’s top investment priorities. The 
Finance Department recommends keeping no more than 25% of County funds at any bank
(except BND) and no more than 50% of County investments in one investment type (except 
treasuries). As you can see below, based on Finance’s recommended maximum allocation, we 
are over-concentrated in First International and Wells Fargo and are over-concentrated in 
money market accounts.

These are only guidelines that can and should be reviewed on a regular basis and revised as 
needed. The goal is to have a broad set of guidelines to provide a reasonable rationale for 
investment decisions that align with the investment priorities in our investment policy. Once 
we’re in agreement on strategy, our office can create some cash flow forecasts and suggest 
specific investments for specific funds. This will be a significant undertaking that will take 
some time. We would start with recommendations of investments for general fund reserves 
currently held at First International.

Mark, do you have any thoughts on this allocation before we move forward?

Investment Report notes: 

This email is in response to a request from Auditor Splonskowski in the 
Sept. 10th investment Committee meeting. This is noted as an "Action 
Item" in the meeting minutes. Despite the Deputy Finance Director 
deliberately waiting until after the Final Budget Hearing to send this 
email, he received no response until recently, after the Q1 2024 
investment report was delivered and this email, and the non-response 
from the Auditor/Treasurer, was mentioned in a public hearing.

60

mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
mailto:msplonskowski@nd.gov
mailto:brcaya@nd.gov
mailto:ljacobs@nd.gov
mailto:pjbinder@nd.gov



Thanks,

Taylor Schmidt
Deputy Finance Director
Burleigh County

(701) 712-8354
schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
316 N 5th St Ste 104
Bismarck, ND 58501
www.burleigh.gov

APPENDIX E.4.

61

mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.burleigh.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cljacobs%40nd.gov%7C759a1346ca1648e0695108dcd8cbb806%7C2dea0464da514a88bae2b3db94bc0c54%7C0%7C0%7C638623616679037864%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9i1jCup76whBdwayfEgon0GmKbudaV61KMfIS6tffSo%3D&reserved=0


From: Splonskowski, Mark D.
To: Schmidt, Taylor; Caya, Brandi M.
Cc: Jacobs, Leigh; Binder, Pamela J.; Splonskowski, Mark D.
Subject: RE: Investment Mix
Date: Wednesday, December 4, 2024 2:52:06 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hey, I’m going through my old emails and found this one. I Mostly agree with this breakdown
however Id like to discuss it and steps moving forward in person. Would we be able to set up a
time next week along with the meeting on the Audit findings? Thanks

From: Schmidt, Taylor <schmidt.taylor@nd.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 11:54 AM
To: Splonskowski, Mark D. <msplonskowski@nd.gov>; Caya, Brandi M. <brcaya@nd.gov>
Cc: Jacobs, Leigh <ljacobs@nd.gov>; Binder, Pamela J. <pjbinder@nd.gov>
Subject: Investment Mix

Good morning,

These tables show our current cash and investment mix as of 08/31/2024 (July fixed income
balances). As we discussed in our investment meeting, per investment policy diversification of
financial institution and investment type are the County’s top investment priorities. The
Finance Department recommends keeping no more than 25% of County funds at any bank
(except BND) and no more than 50% of County investments in one investment type (except
treasuries). As you can see below, based on Finance’s recommended maximum allocation, we
are over-concentrated in First International and Wells Fargo and are over-concentrated in
money market accounts.

These are only guidelines that can and should be reviewed on a regular basis and revised as
needed. The goal is to have a broad set of guidelines to provide a reasonable rationale for
investment decisions that align with the investment priorities in our investment policy. Once
we’re in agreement on strategy, our office can create some cash flow forecasts and suggest
specific investments for specific funds. This will be a significant undertaking that will take
some time. We would start with recommendations of investments for general fund reserves
currently held at First International.

Mark, do you have any thoughts on this allocation before we move forward?

APPENDIX E.5.

62

mailto:msplonskowski@nd.gov
mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
mailto:brcaya@nd.gov
mailto:ljacobs@nd.gov
mailto:pjbinder@nd.gov
mailto:msplonskowski@nd.gov



 
Thanks,
 
Taylor Schmidt
Deputy Finance Director
Burleigh County
 
(701) 712-8354
schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
316 N 5th St Ste 104
Bismarck, ND 58501
www.burleigh.gov
 

63

mailto:schmidt.taylor@nd.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.burleigh.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cljacobs%40nd.gov%7C60b769ec745f4a080ece08dd14a58225%7C2dea0464da514a88bae2b3db94bc0c54%7C0%7C0%7C638689423262074445%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=LRVj2i81OIMe97cH5pjV6buILlnUCQLCPTiLLQP3yYU%3D&reserved=0


AUDITOR/TREASURER
VETTER TOTAL

 1/1/2023 - 3/31/2023 4/1/2023 - 12/31/2023 1/1/2024 - 9/30/2024 1/1/2023 - 12/31/2023 1/1/2024 - 9/30/2024

Bank of North Dakota - Burleigh County (89,779.03)$  (146,385.72)$  (292,528.73)$  (236,164.75)$  (292,528.73)$  (528,693.48)$      
Bank of North Dakota - Morton County (27,743.64) (50,056.97) (83,340.43) (77,800.61) (83,340.43) (161,141.04)         
Bank of the West (10,540.62) - - (10,540.62) - (10,540.62) 
BNC National Bank (21,095.86) (13,456.60) (10,561.69) (34,552.46) (10,561.69) (45,114.15) 
Bravera Bank (6,902.47) (6,277.80) (12,465.70) (13,180.26) (12,465.70) (25,645.97) 
Choice Bank (29,894.38) (6,281.85) (20,254.30) (36,176.22) (20,254.30) (56,430.52) 
First Interational Bank (204,615.86) (79,165.47) (59,669.25) (283,781.33) (59,669.25) (343,450.58) 
Wells Fargo (Sweep) -  General Fund (1,886.49) (2,353.79) (32,189.89) (4,240.28) (32,189.89) (36,430.17) 
Wells Fargo (Sweep) - "PEG" (27,163.97) (105,254.64) (104,154.40) (132,418.61) (104,154.40) (236,573.01) 

(419,622.31)$  (409,232.84)$  (615,164.40)$  (828,855.14)$  (615,164.40)$  (1,444,019.54)$   

AUDITOR/TREASURER
SPLONSKOWSKI

DEPUTY
AUDITOR/TREASURER

TIMELINE OF RETURN ON INVESTMENT BY TERM IN OFFICE



Bank Investment Type Average Balance Interest Earned 
1/1/2024 - 3/31/2024

Benchmarked Interest Difference 
Over/(Under) 

Benchmark
Bank of North Dakota Money Market 4,746,089.98$  7,021.61$  63,047.87$  (56,026.26)$          

Wells Fargo Sweep "PEG" 3,000,000.00 5,495.34 39,871.23 (34,375.89)            
Sweep Money Market 22,906,371.37 256,755.18 267,047.55 (10,292.37)            

First International Bank CDs 7,500,000.00 43,006.85 49,670.55 (6,663.70)              
Money Market 25,453,683.60 330,505.64 341,960.24 (11,454.60)            

BNC National Bank CDs 1,147,018.68 40,011.78 44,030.75 (4,018.97)              
Money Market 47,608.09 59.36 640.30 (580.94)                  

Choice Bank CDs 5,384,094.00 65,759.62 75,159.46 (9,399.84)              
Money Market 28,768.92 236.37 387.37 (151.00)                  

Bravera CDs 680,000.00 8,578.43 9,053.13 (474.70)                  
Money Market 4,098,409.78 52,423.60 55,223.15 (2,799.55)              

(136,237.82)          

Bank of North Dakota Money Market - Morton 3,473,362.15 3,245.89 29,222.31 (25,976.42)            

Subtotal, Morton (25,976.42)            

Total (162,214.23)$       

Subtotal, Burleigh

 Q1 2024 SUMMARY



Bank Investment Type Average Balance Interest Earned 
4/1/2024 - 6/30/2024

Benchmarked Interest Difference 
Over/(Under) 

Benchmark
Bank of North Dakota Money Market 17,320,843.07$  9,827.64$  87,544.78$  (77,717.14)$          

Wells Fargo Sweep "PEG" 3,000,000.00 3,787.46 40,163.02 (36,375.56)            
Sweep Money Market 25,600,621.21 325,332.91 338,507.73 (13,174.82)            

First International Bank CDs 700,000.00 3,739.73 4,031.42 (291.69)                  
Money Market 30,313,062.29 380,399.02 404,249.33 (23,850.31)            

BNC National Bank CDs 1,147,018.68 27,319.79 30,516.67 (3,196.88)              
Money Market 49,145.88 62.16 657.95 (595.79)                  

Choice Bank CDs 750,000.00 37,622.56 45,290.03 (7,667.47)              
Money Market 107,365.95 1,677.43 2,767.89 (1,090.46)              

Bravera CDs 913,509.34 20,163.32 20,930.26 (766.93)                  
Money Market 4,141,050.27 51,478.92 55,437.29 (3,958.37)              

(168,685.43)          

Bank of North Dakota Money Market - Morton 5,998,776.62 2,444.89 21,754.72 (19,309.83)            

Subtotal, Morton (19,309.83)            

Total (187,995.26)$       

Subtotal, Burleigh

Q2 2024 SUMMARYQ2 2024 SUMMARY



Bank Investment Type Average Balance Interest Earned 
7/1/2024 -9/30/2024

Benchmarked Interest Difference 
Over/(Under) 

Benchmark
Bank of North Dakota Money Market 12,343,382.36$  20,348.29$  179,133.63$  (158,785.34)$       f

Wells Fargo Sweep "PEG" 3,000,000.00 3,542.27 36,945.22 (33,402.95)            
Sweep Money Market 21,740,609.26 273,699.01 282,421.71 (8,722.70)              

First International Bank CDs 700,000.00 8,821.92 9,510.03 (688.11)                  
Money Market 30,306,040.72 386,658.96 403,379.80 (16,720.84)            

BNC National Bank CDs 1,147,018.68 13,833.99 14,982.26 (1,148.28)              
Money Market 109,455.65 163.93 1,184.76 (1,020.83)              

Choice Bank CDs 934,094.00 18,180.74 19,967.35 (1,786.61)              
Money Market 29,199.66 234.38 393.30 (158.92)                  

Bravera CDs 913,509.34 27,050.69 27,737.23 (686.54)                  
Money Market 4,193,030.54 52,696.71 56,476.31 (3,779.60)              

(226,900.72)          

Bank of North Dakota Money Market - Morton 3,503,893.40 4,986.43 43,040.61 (38,054.18)            f

Subtotal, Morton (38,054.18)            

Subtotal, with bond-related activity (264,954.91)          

Less bond-related activity                                                    88,875.52

Total $             (176,079.39)

f Of these amounts, $88,876 were due to the bidding agent advising us to liquidate our 
investments so we could re-structure our portfolio to mature alongside our bonds
to maturity at 2032. $76,188 was Burleigh and $12,688 was Morton.

Subtotal, Burleigh

Q3 2024 SUMMARY



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 9 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Request for County Board Action 
 
DATE: 12/16/2024         
   
TO:  Burleigh County Commission  
  
FROM: Mark Splonskowski 
   
ITEM: 2024 General Election recap 
 
 
 Chairman and Commissioners, I would like to give you a recap of the 2024 General election, 
an overview of the challenges faced, and the turnout we experienced.  
 The 2024 General Election was historic in many ways, not only because of the Presidential 
race, but also due to the several contentious measures on the ballot, but more specifically for 
Burleigh County with the resignation of the Election Coordinator. The General Election preparation 
began almost as soon as the Primary election Canvass board was complete. From doing inventory on 
supplies to preparing the notices for newspapers. There are many steps in putting on an election 
before ballots even arrive in the Office for Absentee voting.  

Absentee voting became available on 9/26/2024 and in total, 9,637 absentee votes were 
received and processed by my office and prepared for the Absentee precinct. With the resignation of 
the Elections Coordinator, we had to reallocate duties within the office as well as take on more duties 
for each person in order to make up for this loss. The Secretary of State office was extremely helpful 
through this process and helped us overcome this challenge. Through this process, mistakes were 
found, corrected, and noted to prevent them from happening again. One example is the Stand-alone 
Election Computer issue which was found and promptly corrected. We also went above and beyond 
the typically required testing and verifications in order to ensure ourselves and the Secretary of States 
Office that certain procedures had been done correctly and completed.  

My staff worked very hard through the election process as well as the Tax and Equalization 
office who have been an integral part of our election process for years. On top of this, several other 
departments generously sent available staff to assist us in the preparation for the election. Poll 
workers are an integral part of any election, and this year was no exception. Burleigh County had 297 
election workers trained and working on election day or on standby in case of a cancelation. These 
individuals did a great job working the elections and are greatly appreciated by me and my office for 
taking time out of their lives to do such a great civic duty. 19,065 votes were cast during Early Vote 
and 24,164 on Election Day. Between absentee, Early vote and Election Day, 52,866 total votes were 
cast, resulting in a 69.99% voter turnout in Burleigh County beating the State turnout of 62.61%. 
Although this election year was very challenging and difficult, my office and all those who helped us 
were able to complete the election process successfully and with minimal issues. I cannot adequately 
express the gratitude and pride I feel for my staff for all they did through this years’ election. We were 
able to adapt and overcome while providing a great election experience for the voters and also 
ensuring all security measures for followed correctly.  



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 11 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
December 9, 2024 
 
Press release: 
 
 
Burleigh County is now seeking applications to the following terms on the various Auxiliary Boards ending 
12/31/2024. 

 
 Bismarck Planning Commission- ETA member   5 Year Term                    1 Position 

 Burleigh County Housing Authority        5 Year Term                1 Position 

 Burleigh County Human Service Zone Board                   3 Year Term      1 Position 

 Burleigh County Park Board                                          3 Year term         2 Positions 

 Burleigh County School District Reorganization               3 Year Term      3 Positions 

 Burleigh County Water Resource Board                         3 Year Term         2 Positions 

 Missouri Valley Complex Committee, (Junior/High School Rodeo Appointee) 1 Position   

  
Auxiliary Board applications can be found at:  
 
https://www.burleigh.gov/boards 
 
 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 
 

  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.burleigh.gov%2Fboards&data=05%7C02%7Cmsplonskowski%40nd.gov%7C0a82a8b568544556cab808dd1875eb44%7C2dea0464da514a88bae2b3db94bc0c54%7C0%7C0%7C638693616913360403%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rrOkXzB5pf8nBNAjyzAjS5irdFbgKthpza2x5vgjM2g%3D&reserved=0


Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Board or Commission on which you prefer to serve:  

Burleigh County Park Board 

List below the skills or qualifications you could bring to this Board or 
Commission:  

I graduated from Minot State College in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in 
Earth Science with a minor in Chemistry.  I retired July 31, 2024, after 30 
years working for the North Dakota Department of Transportation 
(NDDOT).  During this time, I worked with the Public, Contractors, and 
NDDOT staff on Highway projects everywhere in the state.  Gaining valued 
experience collaborating with the public and people.  Since I have always 
been interested in the outdoors, I decided over 15 years ago to become 
involved with committees, clubs, and organizations to give something 
back to this great state of North Dakota.  I was born here, raised here, 
educated here, and never left North Dakota wanting to make sure that 
citizens of North Dakota always came first in outdoor interests.  I have 
gained experience working for the citizens of North Dakota over the past 
30 years, particularly during the last three years as a Park Board Member 
of Burleigh County.  Over the past thirty years, I have obtained a vast 
amount of experience and knowledge in working with computers, policy 
input, and legislative work while working at the NDDOT and affiliate 
organizations with which I am involved. 

If you have any special interest or reason for serving on this Board or 
Commission, please explain below. 

My main interest is to not only serve and work for Burleigh County, but 
also its residents to make sure the parks are in tip/top shape.  This carries 
over to what others from outside the County see when they are visiting 
and using our Parks and facilities.  It is a pleasure hearing about various 
activities they were intended to be used for allowing everyone to enjoy 
their time spent there.   I have enjoyed working as a member of the Park 
Board for the past three years, and I believe that I can and will offer more 
input when needed. Yes, I look forward to being selected as a member of 
the Burleigh County Park Board working with the County Commissioners 
to make our Burleigh County Parks the best.   



Board or Commission on which you prefer to serve:  

Burleigh County Park Board 

List below the skills or qualifications you could bring to this Board or 
Commission:  

I graduated from Minot State College in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in 
Earth Science with a minor in Chemistry.  I retired July 31, 2024, after 30 
years working for the North Dakota Department of Transportation 
(NDDOT).  During this time, I worked with the Public, Contractors, and 
NDDOT staff on Highway projects everywhere in the state.  Gaining valued 
experience collaborating with the public and people.  Since I have always 
been interested in the outdoors, I decided over 15 years ago to become 
involved with committees, clubs, and organizations to give something 
back to this great state of North Dakota.  I was born here, raised here, 
educated here, and never left North Dakota wanting to make sure that 
citizens of North Dakota always came first in outdoor interests.  I have 
gained experience working for the citizens of North Dakota over the past 
30 years, particularly during the last three years as a Park Board Member 
of Burleigh County.  Over the past thirty years, I have obtained a vast 
amount of experience and knowledge in working with computers, policy 
input, and legislative work while working at the NDDOT and affiliate 
organizations with which I am involved. 

If you have any special interest or reason for serving on this Board or 
Commission, please explain below. 

My main interest is to not only serve and work for Burleigh County, but 
also its residents to make sure the parks are in tip/top shape.  This carries 
over to what others from outside the County see when they are visiting 
and using our Parks and facilities.  It is a pleasure hearing about various 
activities they were intended to be used for allowing everyone to enjoy 
their time spent there.   I have enjoyed working as a member of the Park 
Board for the past three years, and I believe that I can and will offer more 
input when needed. Yes, I look forward to being selected as a member of 
the Burleigh County Park Board working with the County Commissioners 
to make our Burleigh County Parks the best.   



OFFICE USE ONLY 
 

Date Appointed by Commission____________ 
 
Term Start Date____________ 
 
Term End Date_____________ 
 
Oath Returned_____________ 

BURLEIGH COUNTY 
AUXILIARY BOARD 

APPLICATION FORM 
 

Name: _____________________________________________________________________  
 
Address: ___________________________________________________________________  
 
Home Phone: ______________ _      Work: __   _______________Cell:                __________  
 
Email: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Board or Commission on which you prefer to serve: 
 
 
List below the skills or qualifications you could bring to this Board or Commission: 
 
 
If you have any special interest or reason for serving on this Board or Commission, please explain below. 
 
 
Principal Occupation/Source of Income (check one) 
 

Farmer Military Investor/Retired Clerical & Sales

Laborer Craftsman Business Owner Professional

Government Student Other  
 
List the name of each business or trust that is NOT the principal source of income, in which you 
have a financial interest: 
 
 
List below the associations or institutions with which you are closely associated, or serve as a 
director or officer: 
 
 
 
Signature: ____________________________________   Date: ________________ 
 
 
 
Please return application to: Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer - PO Box 5518 - Bismarck ND 58506 

Jeffery A. Herman

533 Meadow Lane Bismarck, ND 58504-5364

(701) 400-5089

jnwher@bis.midco.net

Burleigh County Park Board

Burleigh County - Burleigh County Park Board, Bis-Man Reel & Rec Vice President,
North Dakota Sport Fishing Congress - Treasurer, Friends of Lake Sakakawea - Board
Member, Delta Waterfowl "Puddle Jumpers Chapter" - Chapter Chairman.

***See Attached.

X

Jeffery A. Herman

***See Attached

Choice Bank, Choice Wealth, Wells Fargo, and First Community Credit Union.

(cell)

(cell)



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line







Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line

Mark Splonskowski
Line



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 12 











 

BURLEIGH COUNTY 
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 

8100 43RD AVENUE NE 
BISMARCK, ND 58503 

             701-204-7748 
            FAX 701-204-7749 

            www.burleighco.com 
 

Date:  December 9, 2024 
 
 
To:  Burleigh County Commissioners 
 
From:  Marcus Hall P.E.  

Burleigh County Engineer   
 
Subject: Bridge #08-126-40.0 (On 236th Street SE – 4.3 miles south of County Hy 10) 
 
This memorandum has been put together to inform the County Board of Commissioners of 
concerns that both Commissioner Schwab and I share regarding the condition of Bridge #08-
126-40.0 (on 236th Street SE – 4.3 miles south of County Highway 10).  This bridge has a single 
span and was constructed in 1950 and consists of a timber deck on timber beams with timber 
piling for the abutment supports. The bridge has a current Operating Rating of HS13.6 and has a 
maximum posted load of 10 Tons. (Both very low numbers for a bridge open to the public and in 
need of immediate replacement.)  The Bridge largely services our agriculture community and 
functions as the main route from the south-central part of the county north to County Highway 
10 and then either to I-94, Bismarck or Sterling.  The Bridge is inspected every other year by the 
NDDOT and we have also conducted off year inspections to stay on top of its condition. I have 
included the most recent NDDOT inspection (Inspection Date: 11/06/2024) and our most recent 
inspection (Inspection Date: 02/29/2024) for your review.   
 
We have been trying to get this bridge replaced for some time.  In 2021 we applied for federal 
bridge funds through the NDDOT and this bridge was selected for replacement in 2024.  
However, because of construction inflation many structures throughout the State have to be 
delayed, and unfortunately this structure in now scheduled to be let in January 2026.  Our main 
concern is that it will be delayed again or money for this program will run out before this 
replacement is completed.   
 
With this in mind we currently see two options before us. 
 
Option 1 
Use local funds to replace the bridge.  We believe that we could have the plans and permits 
completed for an April letting and (if all goes well at the Concrete Culvert fabrication plant) 
constructed by the fall of 2025.  Currently, we believe that the Construction and Construction 

 



Engineering cost would run between $900,000 and $1,000,000.  By doing this we would be 
giving up on Federal funding but we would be ensuring the quickest replacement time. 
 
Option 2 
Continue on with the federal program and let the project in January 2026 (assuming they don’t 
once again delay the project or terminate the program before that).  We would still be 
responsible for matching funds and noneligible items, totaling around $250,000 of local money.  
If all went according to plan (and both Commissioner Schwab and I have our doubts that this 
will take place) the project could be completed by the fall of 2026. 
 
As stated at the beginning of this memo Commissioner Schwab and I are concerned that this 
bridge could go down at anytime or deteriorate to such a point that we would have to close it 
before we are ready to replace it.  Both outcomes would be bad for the safety and economical 
wellbeing of the area.  Therefore, we are asking the Board to consider Option 1 and fund the 
project through General fund reserves. 


	a complete packet final 1216.pdf
	Abatement letter Dec 16, 2024.pdf
	Sheet1

	Leigh 1.2 2023 Investment Report FINAL 12112024 457pm.pdf
	2023 Investment Report Draft 4
	Appendix A through E Current as of 12 11 2024 413pm
	Appendices A through D with duty list
	Appendices A through D
	Appendices A through C
	Appendix. A.1. WF Sweep Previous Day 010323
	Appendix A.2. WF Sweep Previous Day 121622
	Appendix A.3. WF Sweep Previous Day 021723
	Appendix A.4. WF Previous Day 052423
	A.B.1. CenComm Combined Interest Over Allocation 2023
	A.C.1. Deputy Auditor_Treasury Job Description
	A.C.2. Office Duties
	A.C.3. Investment PolicyNOTES

	Appendix D. Burleigh County Investment Policy

	A.C.4.Duty List
	Sheet1


	Appendix E #2
	Appendix E #1
	Appendix E.1. Jan 26 RE_ Investment Committee
	Appendix E.2.May Investment Committee email Agenda with Email
	FW_ Investment Committee Meeting
	Appendix E.2. May Investment Committee meeting

	Appendix E.3. September 2024 Investment Meeting with Minutes
	Appendix E.4. Sept 19th Investment Mix

	Appendix E.5. RE_ Investment Mix Splonskowski response Hey



	Leigh 1.3 Q1 Q2 Q3 2024 Return on Investment UPDATED 12 12 2024 833AM.pdf
	All Timeline
	Q1 Q2 Q3 2024 Return on Investment
	Q1 2024
	Q2 2024
	Q3 2024


	Lawyer info.pdf
	Memos.pdf
	Petition for Removal by Governor.pdf


	Auxiliary board open spots
	Auxiliary apps
	Cynthia Chavez Housing Authority
	Errol Behm Park Board
	Herman Application info
	Herman Application info
	Jeff herman Park Board
	Planning app Michael Barsness
	Planninng app. Preszler
	Steve neu Park Board
	Trent Wangen Planning
	a complete packet final 1216



